Public Document Pack

T™ILLINGDON

LONDON
C h] ld ren ) You n g Councillors on the Committee
People and Jane Palmer (Chairman)
. . Nick Denys (Vice-Chairman)
Learning Policy Teil Bamec
Ove rview Jem Duducu
. Duncan Flynn
Committee Becky Haggar
Tony Eginton
Date: WEDNESDAY, 17 Peter Money
FEBRUARY 2016 Jan Sweeting (Labour Lead)
Time: 7.00 PM

Other Voting Representative
Venue: COMMITTEE ROOMS Anthony Little, Roman Catholic Diocesan.
4 & 4A - CIVIC CENTRE
HIGH STREET, UXBRIDGE,
UB8 1UW

Meeting Members of the Public and
Details: Press are welcome to attend
this meeting

Published: Tuesday, 9 February 2016

Contact: Jon Pitt
Tel: 01895 277655
Email: jpitt@hillingdon.gov.uk

This Agenda is available online at:
http://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=323&MId=2448&Ver=4

Putting our residents first

Lloyd White

Head of Democratic Services

London Borough of Hillingdon,

3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW
www. hillingdon.gov.uk



Useful information for
residents and visitors

Travel and parking \/ N
& A
Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at J
the Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station,
with the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a

! Uxbrid
short walk away. Limited parking is available at F'a--llmn wla-e}b\\
the Civic Centre. For details on availability and Shopping [l 0008

. Centre Il"l_t_U'—"'
how to book a parking space, please contact ’ i
Democratic Services. Please enter from the ‘> o
Council’s main reception where you will be car gurk

directed to the Committee Room. Gl i

Muzimring

Accessibility

For accessibility options regarding this agenda
please contact Democratic Services. For those
hard of hearing an Induction Loop System is

available for use in the various meeting rooms.

Attending, reporting and filming of meetings

For the public part of this meeting, residents and the media are welcomed to attend, and if
they wish, report on it, broadcast, record or film proceedings as long as it does not disrupt
proceedings. It is recommended to give advance notice to ensure any particular
requirements can be met. The Council will provide a seating area for residents/public, an
area for the media and high speed WiFi access to all attending. The officer shown on the
front of this agenda should be contacted for further information and will be available at the
meeting to assist if required. Kindly ensure all mobile or similar devices on silent mode.

Please note that the Council may also record or film this meeting and publish this online.
Emergency procedures

If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarm. Please follow the signs to the nearest
FIRE EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt. Lifts must not be used unless
instructed by a Fire Marshal or Security Officer.

In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued via the tannoy, a Fire

Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs, should make their
way to the signed refuge locations.



Terms of Reference

A central role of a Policy Overview Committees is to undertake in-depth policy reviews on
specific issues. Reviews provide the opportunity to hear from members of the public and
expert witnesses, including people from a wide range of external organisations. Reviews
usually make recommendations to the Cabinet on how the Council could improve its work.
They therefore perform an important role in opening up the policy-making process to a
wider audience, including people who would not normally have the opportunity to
participate.

This Committee undertakes the policy overview role in relation to the following matters:

Education Services and statutory education authority functions
School performance and attainment

School Transport

Relationships with Local Academies / Free Schools
Pre-School & Early Years Services

Youth Services & Careers Services

Juvenile justice & probation services

Adult Learning

Education and learning partnerships

Music & The Arts

Social care services for children, young persons and children with special needs
Adoption and Fostering

Family Services



Agenda

1 Apologies for Absence
2 Declarations of Interest in matters coming before the meeting
3  To confirm that items of business marked Part 1 will be considered in
public and that the items marked Part 2 will be considered in private
4  To agree the minutes of the meeting held on 13 January 2016 1-8
5  Children and Young People's Social Care Service Improvement Plan 9-50
- Progress Report

6  Work Programme 2015/16 51 - 54

7 Forward Plan 55 -60



Agenda ltem 4
Minutes

CHILDREN, YOUNG PEOPLE AND LEARNING
POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE

HILLINGDON
13 January 2016 LONDON

Meeting held at Committee Room 5 - Civic Centre,
High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW

Committee Members Present:

Councillors Jane Palmer (Chairman), Nick Denys (Vice-Chairman), Teji Barnes,

Jem Duducu, Duncan Flynn, Tony Eginton, Manjit Khatra, Jan Sweeting (Labour Lead)
and Mr Tony Little.

LBH Officers Present:

Laurie Baker (Interim Head of School Improvement/Education Quality & Strategy),
Susan Hynds (Manager - Early Years Advisory), Dan Kennedy (Head of Business
Performance, Policy & Standards), Peter Malewicz (Group Finance Manager),

Tom Murphy (Head of Early Intervention Services), Tony Zaman (Corporate Director Of
Social Care) and Jon Pitt (Democratic Services Officer).

52. | APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda Item 1)

Apologies for absence were received from Clir. Becky Haggar, with no substitute in
attendance and from ClIr Peter Money, with Clir Manijit Khatra substituting.

53. | DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE THE MEETING
(Agenda Item 2)

There were no Declarations of Interest made.

54. | TO CONFIRM THAT ITEMS OF BUSINESS MARKED PART 1 WILL BE
CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THAT THE ITEMS MARKED PART 2 WILL BE
CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE (Agenda Item 3)

It was confirmed that all items were Part | and would be discussed in public.

55. | TO AGREE THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 25 NOVEMBER 2015
(Agenda Item 4)

Resolved: That:

1. The minutes of the meeting held on 25 November 2015 be agreed as a
correct record.

56. | BUDGET PROPOSALS REPORT FOR CHILDREN, YOUNG PEOPLE AND
LEARNING SERVICES 2016/17 (Agenda ltem 5)

Officers provided a presentation on the draft revenue budget and Capital Programme
of the Children, Young People and Learning Services for 2016/17. During the
presentation it was noted that:

Page 1



The draft budget proposals had been initially considered by Cabinet on 17
December 2015. Cabinet would next consider the proposals on 18 February
2016. The proposals would then go to Council for approval on 25 February
2016. This report would include comments made by the Policy Overview
Committee. It was requested that the Committee agree a formal comment
following the officer's presentation.

The December Cabinet meeting had considered the budget prior to the Council
having received notification of its Local Government Finance Settlement. The
impact of the finance settlement was still being worked through as there were
still a number of other funding streams where the Council had not yet received
an update and the indication was that this was likely to take place in February
2016.

The budget proposals had been compiled with the impact of the Government's
deficit reduction programme in mind. This had seen a reduction of 56% (£67m)
in Government funding to the Council since 2010/11, with indications being that
the level of funding would continue to fall. The savings identified had taken into
account the proposal to freeze Council Tax for an eighth successive year and
funding the freeze for older persons into a 12" successive year. Balances and
reserves had been maintained at well above the minimum recommended level.
During 2015, the Council had agreed to provide significant additional resources
for Children and Young People Services. This had included the continued use of
agency staff at all levels. A structural review was undertaken to ensure that
there was enough capacity to manage caseloads and that there were clear lines
of management control and accountability. This resulted in a flatter management
structure having being proposed.

The structure for Children's Services had now been agreed and recruitment
activity was being undertaken. Senior management posts had been filled first.
Two service manager posts had been filled, leaving one that remained vacant.
There were now only six vacancies remaining of 23 Team Manager posts across
Children's Services.

The recruitment of Social Workers had started in October 2015, with further
recruitment activity due to be undertaken early in 2016. The recruitment activity
was looking across the country and beyond in order to fill the posts.

The total cost to the Council of Looked After Children (LAC) was increasing.

This was due to some children having increasingly complex needs rather than it
being due to the number of LAC increasing. The number of LAC was in line with
expectations for a population the size of Hillingdon's.

Around one third of Hillingdon LAC were unaccompanied asylum seekers, which
suggested that the number of non-asylum seeker LAC was relatively low
compared to other council areas. Asylum seeker LAC tended to be older
teenagers in the 16-18 age bracket. The cost of looking after these children
ranged from £3,400 to £6,000 per week (£176,800 per annum to £312,000 per
annum). Members were informed that it is more cost effective to use in house
Council provision rather than an external provider.

The number of asylum seeker children arriving in Hillingdon was stable. In Kent
and other areas with seaports, there had been significant increases in arrivals.
This has not been seen in Hillingdon, despite Heathrow Airport being in the
Borough.

The Home Office had advised all councils that grant funding would be provided
for eligible asylum seeker children at a rate of £114 per day for eligible under
16's, £91 per day for eligible 16 to 17 year olds and £150 per week for those
eligible aged over 18. In response to a Member question, it was confirmed that
Council was required to meet the funding shortfall in order to provide care to

Page 2




these groups.

e Hillingdon was seeing a growing number of over 18 asylum seeking children,
compared to the number of those who were under 18. This was due to a high
number of younger children arriving five to six years ago who were now
becoming adults.

e The number of primary schools pupils was continuing to grow, with there having
been an increase of nearly 850 pupils between October 2014 and October 2015.
Growth at secondary level was much smaller, but it was anticipated that this
would rise in the future as the extra primary pupils moved to secondary school.

e Conversion by schools in the Borough to Academy status continued. 38 schools
in Hillingdon were now Academies. Two other schools were looking to convert to
Academy status.

¢ The Government had confirmed that a National Funding Formula would be
introduced from April 2017. This would cover all funding streams, including Early
Years, schools and High Needs.

e The entitlement to free child care for three and four year olds would be
increased for working parents from 15 to 30 hours per week.

e The Education Services Grant would be reduced by 75% and it was anticipated
that this would eventually be abolished. It was noted that one school had stated
that they would lose £170,000 of their budget as a result.

e The proposed capital programme reflected population growth within the
Borough. Local authorities were obliged to fund capital programmes to enable
the expansion of existing schools and the building of new ones. The successful
programme of primary expansion had now largely been delivered with a residual
forecast need for additional places in the north of the Borough. There was a
need for additional secondary school places. Officers advised that pupil
forecasts were kept under close review. The total cost of these programmes was
approximately £200 million, with the Government funding approximately half the
cost and Council Tax payers the other half.

Discussion

A Member reflected that, given the reduction in Government funding, he considered
that officers had done a good job in developing a budget that addressed all relevant
issues.

Another Member voiced concerns about the level of savings that the budget was
proposing to make. These amounted to total savings of 12.1 million across the Council,
with 3.6 million of this due to come from Children, Young People and Learning
Services. The Member was concerned at the scale and depth of budget reductions to
some of the most important services. Some services were still in need of further
improvement and there was a danger that cuts would undermine the improvements
made to date.

Reductions to the Troubled Families budget and to that of Business Performance and
Intelligence were highlighted as being of concern. In the case of the latter, it was
worrying that reductions were proposed in this area given that the major review on 'The
Effectiveness of Early Help to Promote Positive Outcomes for Families' [due to be
presented to the Committee later in the meeting] was proposing that the use of data
and intelligence be further developed to enhance service delivery. The review had also
suggested that Early Intervention and Prevention Services needed to improve
promotion of its offer to ensure that the maximum number of families were aware of the
provision and could benefit from it. The Member was not clear how this could be
achieved against the backdrop of a hudget reduction of £600,000 on a current service

rage o




budget of £8 million.

In response to the concerns raised, officers advised that different ways of working were
delivering efficiencies to enable the savings to be made without impacting on service
delivery. Efficiencies would also be made through improving value for money. Savings
were also being made through the negotiation of more efficient contracts and by
increasing in-house foster care provision. Each in-house fosterer used saved £20,000
compared to using an external provider.

With regard to Business Performance and Intelligence, processes had been reviewed,
with teams being brought together. The teams had been re-organised to deliver greater
efficiencies and focused on corporate priorities. The restructured service was able to
operate more effectively with a reduced budget.

It was questioned whether possible increased future demand for primary places had
been taken into account. Officers stated that forecasts showed that primary school
demand had been largely met in Hillingdon, although there was some residual demand
in the north of the Borough. There could also be future additional demand in the Hayes
area, in part due to continued investment in residential and commercial developments.
The forecasts were reviewed annually. It was not anticipated that excess demand
would be a significant issue. It was, however, anticipated that there would be a
significant increase in secondary demand in the next five to eight years.

Members asked what action was being undertaken to deal with schools that had been
identified as being at risk of coasting. Officers responded that such schools would be
contacted for the concerns to be discussed and would be given the opportunity to work
collaboratively with partners in Hillingdon and beyond.

A Member asked whether additional expenditure was incurred over and beyond the
provision of the Troubled Families Grant, when supporting such families. It was also
questioned whether the Council paid other organisations who took on aspects of this
work and how Children's Centres could continue to provide the current range of
services if the budget was reduced by 50%. It was confirmed that the Grant funded
Council costs and was not passed on to partner organisations. The Council's Early
Intervention and Prevention Service worked with partners to identify families in need of
"Troubled Families' support. 262 families were being targeted by this work in this year.
With regard to Children's Centres, service provision was not being reduced, the 50%
reduction related to a realignment of resources relating to delivery programmes, where
the resources are managed across the Children's Centre Programme. The required
savings noted were being found by working more efficiently, such as through collective
buying by the locality groups.

The Chairman felt that, based upon the evidence that she had seen, that the changes
made within Children's Services would improve efficiency. Improved efficiency enabled
budgetary savings to be made. Therefore, significant budget reductions did not
necessarily mean a reduction in service provision.

Resolved: That:

1. That the report be noted.

2. The Committee noted the budget proposals submitted and acknowledges
the work that has been undertaken in providing a working budget, noting
constraints placed via external funding streams. Concerns were expressed
by some Members about the level of saving that needed to be achieved

Page 4




and the effect on services. There was no consensus amongst the
Committee Members as to whether reductions in funding would have an
impact on the service delivered.

o7.

STANDARDS AND QUALITY IN EDUCATION IN HILLINGDON - 2014/2015 (Agenda
Item 6)

Officers introduced the report to provide Members with an overview of the standard and
quality of education within Hillingdon schools. The report focused on attainment and
achievement for the academic year 2014/15. The information was being presented to
the Committee for comment prior to it being considered by Cabinet on 18 February
2016. It was noted that The Hillingdon School Improvement Plan 2015-18, which had
been approved by Cabinet in 2015, was also included in the information presented to
the Committee.

Within Hillingdon, the overall attainment of early years and primary age pupils had risen
in 2014/15. Most key measures of educational progress and attainment showed
significant improvement compared to 2014 data. Results remained in line with or above
national averages.

Overall performance of Hillingdon pupils at Foundation Stage for the seven key subject
areas showed significant improvement. Levels of development were good, with
significant gains compared to 2013/14. For Writing, outcomes were 2.2% above the
national average, while Media and Materials was 2.6% above average. However,
performance for Speaking was 1.9% below the national average, while for Managing
Feelings and Behaviour, it was 2.6% below average. The percentage of pupils
demonstrating an overall good level of development increased from 52% in 2013/14 to
65.2% in 2014/15, although this was still below the national average of 66.5%.

Also at the Foundation Stage, boys outperformed girls against most measures. For
literacy, boys were 3.9% above the national average and 6% above the London
average. For maths, the attainment of boys was 1.6% above the national average. The
achievement of girls was slightly below the national average, by 1.2% for literacy and
1.9% for maths. Overall for the areas of Communication and Language; Personal,
Social and Emotional Development and Physical Development, the attainment of pupils
receiving Pupil Premium funding was 7% below that of pupils not receiving the funding.
Performance of pupils receiving the premium was 15% below other pupils for Maths
and 17% below for Literacy.

Priorities for the Foundation Stage included continuing to support teachers to make
secure and consistent judgements and focusing moderation on the areas of Personal,
Social and Emotional Development, Communication and Language and Understanding
the World. Work would be undertaken to ensure that girls made appropriate progress
and strategies would be developed to help teachers to better support children whose
first language is not English. Pupils receiving Early Years Pupil Premium would also be
supported to help them make progress in line with their peers who are not in receipt of
the funding. Finally, leadership and management skills of teachers of the Early Years
and Foundation Stage would be supported in order to facilitate more effective
monitoring and self evaluation.

In response to a Member question, officers advised that the 'Understanding the World'
topic area covered the more traditional subject areas of geography, history and
Information Technology.

Page 5




A Member welcomed the progress made at the Foundation Stage, while noting that
performance remained below the London average in all but one subject area. It was
questioned why performance remained relatively low at the Foundation Stage,
compared to London overall. Officers advised that the Moderation Programme was
three years into a four year programme. 75% of schools had been moderated, with
25% remaining. It would take the full four years to get a full picture of the progress
made by Foundation Stage pupils in Hillingdon. It was anticipated that 12 of 17
Individual Learning goals would be achieved. The work being undertaken was making
a positive impact, but it was acknowledged that there was still work to be done to
improve pupil performance in this area. There appeared to be some resistance within
schools to the moderation work being undertaken. Therefore, it was important to
ensure effective engagement with schools to overcome barriers and to provide
teachers with the support required. This was achieved, in part, through the hosting of
moderation events that every Early Years Teacher was required to attend.

Members asked what role the Council could play in improving the performance of
academies and free schools. Officers advised that schools would often voluntarily
engage to seek advice and support and that contact would be made with schools
where there were concerns about pupil attainment. Other measures could include the
issue of warning letters to schools and reporting the school to the Regional Schools
Commissioner.

Performance at Key Stage 4 was less strong, although the gap was closing between
disadvantaged and non disadvantaged pupils. The percentage of children in Hillingdon
obtaining at least 5 A* to C grades at GCSE (including English and Maths) had fallen
3% between 2014 and 2015, from 59% to 56%. This compared to a national decline of
0.5%, from 57% to 56.5%.

In response to a Member question, officers advised that the overall performance of
Hillingdon schools at Key Stage 4 ranked 24™ of the 34 London Boroughs. This was an
improvement of four rankings compared to the previous year. Further work was needed
in order to understand performance at Key Stages 4 and 5 and why there was a
relative decline amongst Hillingdon pupils when compared to performance at earlier
stages. This would involve working with schools and 14-19 providers to drive
improvement and hold leadership teams to account, where appropriate. Schools liaised
with governor committees with a view to improving performance and a School Strategic
Partnership Board had been established.

Sixteen schools in Hillingdon had been inspected in 2014/15. Of these, six received an
improved judgement, while ten of the sixteen had received a downgrade. Most of the
decreased grades were schools previously judged as being good, which were now
judged as requiring improvement. In many cases, these downgrades were linked to
leadership, management and governance of the schools and/or to lower outcomes
for disadvantaged pupils.

Concerns were raised by Members about grade inflation and how this was been
addressed. Officers advised that schools had varying approaches, noting that some
schools were part of the Early Adoption Scheme for core maths qualifications. Where
there were specific concerns, these could be raised directly with the school and with
the Regional Schools Commissioner.

Borough wide data had been utilised previously in order to challenge school
performance. This exercise was due to be repeated in March 2016.

Page 6




Resolved: That:

1. That the report be noted.

2. Early Years and Foundation Stage data be circulated to the Committee,
broken down by educational planning area.

3. The following comment be submitted on behalf of the Committee for
inclusion in the forthcoming report to Cabinet:

"The Committee is encouraged to see improvements made at the
Foundation and Primary stages of education. However, it must be
recognised that further work is required, particularly at Key Stages 4 and
5. Members were concerned by the level of progress of young people with
Special Educational Needs (SEN) and of pupils who are able, but
disadvantaged."

58.

SINGLE MEETING REVIEW DRAFT SCOPING REPORT - SUPPORTING
EDUCATIONAL ASPIRATION FOR DISADVANTAGED CHILDREN (Agenda Item 7)

Officers introduced the scoping report for the proposed single meeting review by the
Committee on 'Supporting Educational Aspiration for Disadvantaged Children.' The key
aim of the review was to investigate the attainment of disadvantaged pupils and to
identify what steps could be taken to improve this. Attainment of disadvantaged pupils
was below that of their non-disadvantaged peers at all educational stages, up to and
including Key Stage 4. Locally, the gap was closing at Key Stage 1 and 2, while there
was a significant gap at Key Stage 3. There was a particular problem with regard to the
attainment of white British boys who were from disadvantaged backgrounds.

The Committee's attention was drawn to the proposed Terms of Reference and also to
the proposed list of witnesses for the review, both of which were contained within the
officer's report. The Committee considered that the proposed list of six withesses was
too ambitious for a single meeting review. Accordingly, it was agreed that the number
of withesses would be reduced to four and that school governors would be removed
from the list of potential witnesses.

Committee Members welcomed the proposed topic, noting that the review needed to
consider existing examples of good practice and data to enable it to geographically
identify where the most disadvantaged pupils were within the Borough. It was also
requested that the review consider the impact of ethnicity, cultural diversity and gender
on the performance of disadvantaged pupils.

Resolved: That:

1. Subject to revision to the list of proposed witnesses, the Committee
agreed the scoping report presented and instructed officers to make
arrangements for a withess session to be held at the February 2016
meeting of the Committee.

59.

MAJOR REVIEW DRAFT FINAL REPORT - THE EFFECTIVENESS OF EARLY
HELP TO PROMOTE POSITIVE OUTCOMES FOR FAMILIES (Agenda Item 8)

The Chairman introduced the draft final report of the Committee's review on 'The
Effectiveness of Early Help to Promote Positive Outcomes for Families.' The
Committee was satisfied with the recommendations proposed by what was considered
to be a well written report that covered all the key concerns identified during the

Page 7




withess sessions.

The Chairman thanked Members and officers for the contribution they had made to the
final report.

It was noted that the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment, which had informed the
review, would not include standalone recommendations. However, the data contained
within it would enable individual services to make informed judgements about how
service provision could be targeted. Reference was made to recommendation 2a of the
major review, which recommended that the use and sharing of data and intelligence
required for effective service delivery be developed.

Resolved: That:

1. The Committee agreed the draft report as presented by the Chairman.
2. That the Chairman would present the draft report to Cabinet on 18

February 2016.
60. | WORK PROGRAMME 2015/16 (Agenda Item 9)
Resolved: That:
1. The Work Programme be noted.
61. | FORWARD PLAN (Agenda Item 10)

Resolved: That:

1. The Forward Plan be noted.

The meeting, which commenced at 7:00 pm, closed at 8:50 pm.

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the
resolutions please contact Jon Pitt 01895 277655. Circulation of these minutes is to
Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public.

Page 8




Agenda ltem 5

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S SOCIAL CARE SERVICE
IMPROVEMENT PLAN - PROGRESS REPORT

Contact Officer: Vince Clark / Sarah Hydrie
Telephone: 01895 250498

REASON FOR ITEM

This report aims to provide a summary of the status of the CYPS Service Improvement
Plan as at February 2016. The Plan gives an overview of all of the key areas of activity
and details of the current stage of improvement work within Children and Young People
Social Care. Within the context of the Department’s overall plan, this paper sets out
progress against each work stream and the performance measures used. In summary, the
plan is substantially completed and on track to meet service objectives set in March 2015.

SUGGESTED COMMITTEE ACTIVITY

It is recommended that the Committee notes the development of the Service Improvement
Plan and progress undertaken to date and comments as appropriate on the direction of
travel and pace of improvements within the service.

INFORMATION
Background

1. In March 2015, the Children's Social Care Services Improvement Plan (SIP) (refer to
appendices) was developed using the Transformation Children's Pathway work
streams. The SIP acknowledges the urgency required to deliver better outcomes for
children within Hillingdon. It enhances the work already completed as part of the Ofsted
Improvement Plan 2014 and ensures that recent improvements are sustained and built
upon. At that time, the service was characterised as having a high turnover of staff, high
caseloads and an inconsistent level of service delivery. The main objective of the plan
was, therefore, to stabilise the service by prioritising recruitment, improving the service
structure and delivering key statutory services to a consistently high standard. The plan
contained seven work streams with performance measures, milestones and key targets
for each area of the Service:

1) Workforce Development;

2) Improving Triage, MASH and Referrals & Assessment;

3) Improving social work practice within the Children’s Social Work Teams;

4) Improving outcomes for Looked After Children & Young People;

5) Improving the quality of Fostering & Adoption provision;

6) Embedding new ways of working and improved practice management
arrangements; and

7) Effective Quality Assurance.

Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee — 17 February 2016

PART 1 — MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Page 9



Progress Summary

2. Since the last update to the Committee in October 2015, the service has been
progressing well to complete actions across all work streams. The table and graph
below summarise the progress which has been made since the Service Improvement
Plan was introduced in March 2015 across each of the 7 work streams.

Total No of . o
Actions Completed Static %o Completed
Jul Reporting mechanism being developed to monitor progress
52 : i

2015 against each action

Oct o
2015 52 25 0 48%
Jan 52 40 0 77%
2016 ’

Summary Table

Status of Actions by Work Stream

mu

WS 1 ws 2

Il Completed
In progress

Hl Static

WS 3 WS 4 WS 5 WS 6 WS 7

Work stream

Graph depicting actions by work stream

3. The graph shows that steady progress continues to be made against all 52 actions in
the Plan, with 40 actions COMPLETED, 12 actions IN PROGRESS and 0 are STATIC.
This shows that 77% of actions in the Plan have been COMPLETED. The Assistant
Director and Project Manager continue to meet with Service Managers on a monthly

Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee — 17 February 2016

PART 1 — MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Page 10



basis to update, challenge and track progress against the Plan. The CYPS Dashboard,
produced by the Performance & Intelligence team, has also been provided to the
Committee (refer to appendices) as evidence of service stability and continued
improvement.

4. In October's update to the Committee, it was acknowledged that service improvement
activity for the Early Intervention Service was also planned. This part of the Service has
been undergoing major change during 2015/16, including the development of a service
delivery model, which is designed to support and dovetail with that of Children's Social
Care. Although the Early Intervention Service is not a formal part of the CYPS Service
Improvement Plan, progress within Early Intervention is closely monitored by the DCS
and his Senior Management Team to ensure there is a close synergy between the two
service areas. Plans are now in place to incorporate the Early Intervention Service into
the planning cycle for 2016/17, so that there will be a single CYPS Service Plan
developed for the forthcoming financial year. The recommendations which were issued
following the Committee's major review of the Early Intervention Service will be
incorporated into next year's Service Plan.

5. The 2015/16 Service Improvement Plan will be concluded by the end of March 2016
and a final report submitted to the Committee in April 2016. The Children's Services
Business Plan for 2016/17, which will include specific actions related to Early
Intervention Service, is currently being developed and will initially be presented to the
Committee as part of the next update.

PAPERS WITH THE REPORT

Appendix 1 - London Borough of Hillingdon Children's Social Care Improvement Plan
2015/16.

Appendix 2 - Children's Social Care Improvement Action Plan 2015/16.
Appendix 3 - CYPS Dashboard.

Appendix 4 - Glossary.

Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee — 17 February 2016

PART 1 — MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



Appendix 1

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan

London Borough of Hillingdon
Children's Social Care Services
Improvement Plan

2015-16

Version 1 final
March 2015

TILLINGDON

LONDON www.hillingdon.gov.uk

Page 13



Appendix 1

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan

Contents

Version 1 final

1. Hillingdon’s vision for vulnerable children

2. Overarching priorities for 2015-16

3. Work streams

Work stream 1: Workforce development

Measurements of progress

Work stream 2: Performance improvement work in Triage, MASH and CSWT

Outcomes of the work stream

Measurement of initial progress (6 months)

Measurements of progress (12 months)

Work stream 3: Defining new ways of working within the CSWTs

Outcomes of the work stream

Measurements of initial progress (6 months)

Measurements of progress (12 months)

Work stream 4: Improving outcomes for LAC & Young People

Outcomes of the work stream

Measurement of progress (6 months)

Measurements of progress (12 months)

Work stream 5: Improving the quality of Fostering & Adoption provision

Outcomes of the work stream

Measurement of progress (6 months)

Measurements of progress (12 months)

Work stream 6: Embedding new ways of working and improved practice management
arrangements

Outcomes of the work stream

Measurement of progress

Work stream 7: Effective Quality Assurance

Outcomes of the work stream

Measurement of progress (6 months)

Appendix 1 - Children's social care improvement action plan 2014-16

Page 14 Page 2 of 20



Appendix 1

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan

1. Hillingdon’s vision for vulnerable children

To deliver an outstanding Social Care Service for Hillingdon’s children and young people
in line with the Children’s Pathway work programme. With a greater focus on prevention
and getting it right through early support, Children's Social Care Services will focus on
offering accessible good quality support for those families that require specialist
interventions.

What does Hillingdon’s vision mean for children and families in social care?
Our vision is to ensure that every child and family who comes to our attention has:

Their needs and vulnerabilities assessed very quickly
Any risks children face are quickly identified, and are reduced as a result of our
involvement

e |f families need medium-long term support, this is done by a capable social worker who
has time to spend with them

e If we cannot achieve positive safe change for children in their family, we offer
additional specialist support and are clear about our responsibilities and their rights

e If children cannot live safely in their family, we work with the wider family to ensure
they remain within their community, and if this is not feasible we provide good quality
alternative homes on a permanent basis

e \We talk to and listen to children and families through our involvement and where
possible act on their concerns.

To achieve the vision, this plan has been developed using the Transformation Children’s
Pathway work streams. It outlines the priority areas of activity required to improve the
overall level of provision for children receiving services from social care. The plan also
acknowledges the urgency required to deliver better outcomes for the children within
Hillingdon. This plan enhances the work already completed as part of the Ofsted
Improvement Plan 2014 and ensures that recent improvements are sustained and built
upon.

In order to deliver this, Children's Social Care Services needs a stable workforce who are
capable of undertaking good quality assessments, offer defined interventions, engage with
families and partners, and deliver timely decision-making for children at critical points
across the Children’s Pathway.

This plan has the political, corporate and senior leadership needed to deliver the
improvements required. This plan will be monitored through the Senior Management
Team within Children and Young People's Services (CYPS) and overseen by the
Performance Monitoring Board chaired by the Chief Executive.

Accountability for delivery of the plan has primarily been devolved to Assistant Directors
who have responsibility for improving outcomes for their respective service areas.

Note - It is important to acknowledge that in August 2014 the level of risk in the Children's
Social Work Team (CSWT) was deemed to be unacceptably high. A significant additional

Page 15

Version 1 final Page 3 of 20



Appendix 1
London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan
amount of resource was committed to the service, coupled with the arrival of a new Senior
Management Team within CYPS. This Leadership team is now firmly focused on driving
forward service improvements.

2. Overarching priorities for 2015-16

e Deliver a successful recruitment plan coupled with the implementation of a flatter
management structure as part of a wider effective workforce plan to ensure good
practice management, training and supervision (see work stream 1 and 6).

e That the whole service maintains a relentless focus on good outcomes for children.

e Maintain good Triage, MASH, Social Work Teams to work with children and
families at an early stage to prevent the need for further intervention where possible
(see work streams 2 and 3).

e Deliver a range of good outcomes for LAC to be achieved through timely court
intervention, focused care planning, and good participation from children and young
people in their care planning (see work streams 4 and 5).

e Embed the Quality Assurance Framework to deliver good practice management,
oversight, and good casework practice throughout the service (see work stream 7).

e Ensure good value for money by getting the spend over 2015-16 for CYPS in line
with base budget, primarily by transitioning out of the Skylakes contract and
reducing the number of agency / interim staff across the social care workforce (see
work stream 1 and 6).

3. Work streams

There are 7 work streams that will deliver improvements to the specified services including
a cross cutting work stream 'embedding new ways of working and improved practice
management arrangements'. There are also interdependencies with projects led by
Residents Services and these are identified and acknowledged within the work streams.

The actions identified in the plan are developed to ensure successful embedding of
re-designed services through good social work practice. The plan's objective is to ensure
that changes implemented are sustainable in the longer-term. The high level work streams
that contain the specific actions that will deliver service improvement are:

Workforce development

Performance improvement work in Triage, MASH and CSWT

Defining new ways of working within the CSWTs

Improving outcomes for Looked After Children (LAC) and Young People
Improving the quality of Fostering & Adoption provision

Embedding new ways of working and improved practice management
arrangements

7. Effective Quality Assurance

2 o

Page 16

Version 1 final Page 4 of 20



Appendix 1

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan

Work stream 1: Workforce development

a.

HR Workforce and Organisational Development are leading on developing a
Recruitment and Workforce Development plan. Improvements include the following:

Updated website to enable prospective applicants to have a good understanding of
what Hillingdon can offer and expectations of the role of a Social Worker.
Applicant packs to contain all relevant information and guidance when applicants
considering Hillingdon as their chosen workplace. Explanation contained in the
pack of supervision, POD work, support etc.

Recruitment process through to delivery to meet the needs of the service in line
with the improvement plan.

Induction process for every new worker to be embedded as standard practice, and
to achieve 100% compliance with current staff receiving a refresher induction to
update their knowledge.

AYSE support to be embedded, with clear standards and requirements set out to
encourage these newly qualified workers to remain in Hillingdon long-term.

Social Work Pathway to be embedded to ensure career structure is supporting
individual needs.

. The service is supporting this work stream. Improvements include the following:

Supervision structures to be embedded to ensure 100% compliance and delivery,
including recording and performance management processes to be clear and
robust in dealing with competency issues.

PADA reaches 100% completion on time and is robust in identifying current
practices of the worker, identifying learning needs and having a SMART
development plan to meet these needs.

Management development plan to be completed for all managers to support their
practice with clear measures of performance incorporated in their development plan
/ PADA.

Measurements of progress

See HR Recruitment and Workforce Development plan to avoid duplication.

Status of the work stream a: In implementation via HR’s Recruitment and Workforce
Development plan.

Status of the work stream b: In implementation via action plan.

Version 1 final

Page 17 Page 5 of 20



Appendix 1

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan

Work stream 2: Performance improvement work in
Triage, MASH and CSWT

This is the current range of activities from the Children's Social Work Teams (CSWT) with
the support of the managed service Skylakes team. Which aims to stabilise the service by
reducing caseloads and reviewing all the Children In Need (CIN) cases. There is a focus
on closing cases where there has been little casework activity or making a clear plan for
social work intervention on these cases, and ensuring timely decisions for children across
the pathway. From November 2014, Skylakes will provide a referral / intake team for all
new social care cases, and will ensure that they have an appropriate assessment within
agreed timescales. The CSWT will work with cases post assessments and will use the
additional capacity provided by Skylakes to review and reduce cases that have been in
the service for a number of months.

Outcomes of the work stream

All children accessing targeted social work services will receive a consistent and timely
assessment intervention by:

Improved and consistent decision-making by the Triage and MASH teams.
Caseloads are to the standard level and in line with current resource capacity.

Best Value is obtained from Skylakes team in that they deliver to contract showing
consistent good performance and to an acceptable practice standard.

No case to be open without a plan for over 6-8 weeks within the service.

In 2015-16 a feasible benchmark of case duration for CIN and CP (Child Protection)
will be able to be set, as well as step up and step down targets.

Measurement of initial progress (6 months)

e Performance data showing an appropriate level of contacts and consistent conversion
rate to referrals into Social Care.

e Performance data - weekly target to reduce overall CIN cases by 25 (see model of
impact on CIN cases), with weekly meetings with managers to review performance
against target. Data-set has been designed to show CIN case trajectory across all
teams including Skylakes.

e Service undertakes regular supervision audits and PADA reviews. (Residual Ofsted
action).

e Contract oversight - Performance Indicators are set and regular meetings are held on
risks and issues. Partnership framework is established.

e Caseloads in the CSWTs to be in line with London AD standards document (average
15 for Duty and Assessment staff, 18 for CP / CIN and 14 for LAC).

This work stream’s initial success will form the baseline to re-establish the Children's
Pathway and will be a critical factor in staff re-engagement.

Measurements of progress (12 months)
e Audits and data indicating consistent decision-making from Triage and Mash.

Page 18

Version 1 final Page 6 of 20



Appendix 1

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan

There will be an increase in families stepping down at key points in social care (at
contacts, post assessment and during CP / CIN work).

All assessments to be completed within timescales. (Residual Ofsted Action).

Audits of assessment indicate good quality, child’s voice, and leading to quicker and
better decision-making. (Residual Ofsted Action).

CIN families remain in the service for an average of 5 months with the vast majority
stepping down to early support.

CP families remain in the service for 9-12 months with two thirds stepping down to
early support and a third being stepped up.

Pre-proceedings work will be delivered in an average of 12-14 weeks.

This work stream's continued success will form the baseline to deliver to Hillingdon’s
vision for children.

Status of the work stream: In implementation via action plan.

Version 1 final

Page 19 Page 7 of 20



Appendix 1

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan

Work stream 3: Defining new ways of working within
the CSWTs

This work stream will review and improve the current operating model in order to realign
the CSWT service with the Children's Pathway and strengthen the prevention model.
Activities include:

e Ultilising Skylakes to act as a referral and assessment team to explore if such an
addition to the pathway model would maintain the improvements expected.

e Embed consistent thresholds in Triage and MASH in line with the Children's Pathway,
and ensure these are tightly defined and managed.

e To understand and plan demand at key points from Triage to Permanency (service
demand flow map).

e Triage to work with the Single Point of Contact project (being led by Residents
Services - interdependency).

e To focus on improving practice in key Ofsted priority areas: assessment, chronology,
timeliness of decisions, and interventions for children.

e Define a private Fostering service with dedicated resource, and plan to increase
referrals, and ensure all statutory regulations are met.

e Bring the specialist parenting assessment service into the current structure, expand its
remit to include interventions, evaluation and increase work-flow, in line with new
target for pre-proceedings work.

e Update transfer protocol to ensure consistent and smarter transfer process.

e Quality Assurance of process to ensure best practice and the voice of the child
remains at the centre of our work with each family.

e \Working with the whole service to promote a structured and sound service delivery
model that is clearly understood by all and achievable in its implementation.

e Achieve stability by recruiting permanent staff in a phased manner throughout the year,
implement new social work pathways and wider workforce planning (see separate
recruitment plan).

e Focused work with the QA service including commissioning of training on good
chronologies and assessment.

e Focused training and site bites on good quality assessments, chronologies (Residual
Ofsted Action).

e Introduce Domestic Violence tools (CADA / Matrix) as part of assessment. (Residual
Ofsted Action).

e Agree the future for the Parenting Assessment Service and work flow.

e Review the service model for asylum children aligned with wider transformation and
funding arrangements.

e Snapshot of Emergency Duty Team to scope any issues and risks.
Page 20

Version 1 final Page 8 of 20



Appendix 1

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan

Outcomes of the work stream

Integration of the Skylakes resource into the Children’s Pathway to deliver a service
as well as release capacity for the CSWT to focus on performance improvement.

Improved through-put of work from referral to social care planning to permanency,
with a clear focus on legal planning and pre-proceedings work (Early Intervention,
CIN, CP, LAC or Children’s Pathway).

Effective response to children and young people with clear outcomes that are
achievable and timely.

Good engagement with families in order for them to understand and take
responsibility to promote change and in turn safeguard their own children.

Implement the agreed recruitment plan and implement workforce planning.

Measurements of initial progress (6 months)

Version 1 final

Skylakes and Hillingdon are able to embed a referral and assessment team that
delivers early outcomes, and evidently contributes to the reduction of caseloads
through CSWT1 and CSWTH1, by creating capacity in these teams to close, step
down and progress casework. The evaluation will feed into any further work on the
Children’s Pathway.

A service demand flow map including demand and capacity will be established to
ensure there is appropriate capacity at key points in the Children’s Pathway.

The resource is flexed and aligned with the transitional approach and dependent on
recruitment.

Private Fostering lead is identified, project group is set up, audit of current cases
are completed with learning.

The Parenting Assessment Service staff are brought into the Hillingdon structure,
the remit is expanded with the placing of the specialist Mental Health Worker.
There is an increase in Legal planning meetings, with an increase in families in
pre-proceedings in line with making timely decisions for children.

Case transfer panel is established, transfer check list (good practice) is used and
cases are transferred at agreed points more consistently.

Improvement in timeliness of assessments completed.

A focused improvement project on assessment and chronology.

Number of complaints will reduce and response time will improve.

Partners feedback will be sought.

Monthly case audits will have 100% compliance.

We will meet our statutory obligations for the privately fostered children in the
Social Work Service.

Recruitment of first line managers is effective as we reduce 100% current agency
staff in management positions to 40% or less.

Aslyum and parenting assessment teams better defined.

Page 21 Page 9 of 20



Appendix 1

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan

Measurements of progress (12 months)

Percentage of work judged good or better - 35% by the end March 2015, 50% by
end September 2015, 80% by end March 2016.

Private fostering referrals will increase.

Audit of decision-making at front door and to ICPC (test thresholds) is planned for
April 2015, which will give us up to date position re. consistency and areas for
further improvement.

Training roll out on assessments.

All chronologies completed and of good quality.

For families in pre-proceedings we work to a 12-14 week timescale to deliver more
timely decisions for children.

The timeliness and quality of assessments improve and this is evidenced by audits,
feedback, staff feedback, supervision audits and timely step downs / step-ups.
There will be an established mechanism to seek service user feedback, and
findings will be part of the learning framework for staff.

Status of the work stream: In implementation via action plan.

Version 1 final

Page 22 Page 10 of 20



Appendix 1

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan

Work stream 4: Improving outcomes for Looked After
Children & Young People

To ensure the Children in Care (CIC) teams are stabilised to deliver caseloads at a
manageable level, which will assist in the implementation of good social work practice. A
range of good outcomes for Looked After Children (LAC) to be achieved through timely
court intervention, focused care planning and good participation from children and young
people in their care planning. The work stream will therefore ensure that there is full and
effective implementation of the Public Law Outline (PLO) that will see all children achieve
a final care order and permanency plan within 26 weeks. All statutory requirements will be
met and audits will provide evidence of good service user engagement within their care
planning.

Outcomes of the work stream

e All LAC cases will be allocated to ensure they receive good permanent outcomes
within 12-18 months (return home, long term fostering, adoption, SGO (Special
Guardianship Orders), connected persons).

e All cases will be worked as a 'whole service' with social workers coordinating
interventions from the virtual school, designated health professionals, and other key
agencies (SDQ , LAC reviews, LAC visits, PEPs, Health Assessments).

e Improve the LAC journey to make it more timely and embed good practice within the
CIC and Young Person’s Teams.

e Review the role of the Court Progression Officer to ensure all court proceedings to be
concluded within the 26 week time scale (unless in exceptional circumstances the care
process is extended by the Court).

All care leavers will have a pathway plan and good EET and housing outcomes.
Improve the level of engagement and consultation with LAC through better practice
and roll out of Viewpoint to all LAC to involve them in their care planning.

This work stream's success will form the baseline to re-establish the Children's Pathway
and will be a critical factor in staff re-engagement.

Measurement of progress (6 months)

e Performance data - weekly target to allocate all LAC cases, meet statutory
reviewing and visiting targets, with weekly meetings with managers to review
performance against target.

e Health, education and placement outputs demonstrate good outcomes for LAC.

e Monthly PLO reporting against 26 week target - continue to reduce number of
'legacy cases' to final hearing and conclude proceedings. Ensure all current work
started since October 2014 is concluded within 26 weeks.

e Successful interim recruitment to all social work and team manager posts and
caseloads to be within the range of 14-16 cases per qualified social worker.

Page 23

Version 1 final Page 11 of 20



Appendix 1

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan

Measurements of progress (12 months)

e Average caseloads remain within 14-16 cases per qualified social worker.

e All LAC cases allocated and children and young people have their statutory
requirements met.

e 80% of audits and data indicating good with evidence of consistent decision-making in
care planning and timely outcomes within the CIC teams.

e All Public Law Outline cases will be completed within 26 weeks (unless specified by
the Court).

e 100% of care leavers will have a pathway plan with clear objectives
e Performance will be top quartile for EET and housing outcomes.

e 80% of audits of care plans indicate good quality, child’s voice and leading to quicker
and better decision-making.

e Looked After Children receive good outcomes within 12-18 months (return home, long-
term fostering, adoption, SGO, Connected Persons).

e All pre-proceedings work will be delivered in an average of 14 weeks.

This work stream's continued success will form the baseline to deliver to Hillingdon’s
vision for children.

Status of the work stream: In implementation via action plan.

Page 24

Version 1 final Page 12 of 20



Appendix 1

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan

Work stream 5: Improving the quality of Fostering &
Adoption provision

To change the current operating model in order to realign the Fostering & Adoption
services with the Children's Pathway, to deliver good and stable placement provision and
permanency outcomes for LAC. The work stream will ensure that the service has sufficient
numbers of placements to provide stable, secure and safe placements for children and
young people who are looked after. The service will also deliver extra support to post
permanence to ensure successful outcomes for those children in adoption, placed under
SGOs (Special Guardianship Orders) and long-term foster placements. Activities include:

e Prototype the 'managed service project' (provided by Coram & HCL) to allocate all
backlog and new carer assessments until the end of May 2015, and to ensure no drift
or further backlogs within the service.

e Evaluate the ‘managed service’ project to consider if such a model can be adapted or
expanded to deliver and maintain the improvements expected from the initial project,
which will include measuring the difference in performance (quality of assessments
and improved throughput) between managed service prototypes and Hillingdon's
service.

e Use the evaluation to plan for demand at key points within the Fostering and Adoption
service and implement a ‘best value’ placement service for the LAC model.

e Implement strong management oversight and evidence of improved permanence
outcomes for LAC in Hillingdon.

e Arrange staff and carer workshops to ensure full consultation and explore staff
experience and views of current operating model, possible changes and proposals.

e Improved QA assurance and independent review of carers in line with national
standards and good practice.

e Improve the management and coordination of the Adoption & Fostering Panel.

Outcomes of the work stream

e Allocation and completion of all outstanding assessments and new assessments
coming into the service between the start of December 2014 and end of May 2015,
through the implementation of the prototype managed service.

e Deliver top quartile adoption and permanence outcomes for LAC in Hillingdon.
e Increase in the number of good quality Hillingdon foster placements available to LAC.

e Reduce the number of Independent Foster Agency (IFA) placements used by LAC in
Hillingdon.

e Sufficient good quality permanent placements options (return home, long-term
fostering, adoption, SGO, connected persons) for LAC children in Hillingdon.

e Improve the number of LAC placed within their own community (inside 20 mile radius).

Page 25

Version 1 final Page 13 of 20



Appendix 1

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan

Timely administration and management of the Panel process.

Measurement of progress (6 months)

Implementation of the 'managed service project' (provided by Coram & HCL) to
allocate all assessment activity as outlined in the project above.

Performance data - weekly target to allocate all carer assessments within statutory and
good practice guidance.

Re-design the service structure to meet the new service model requirements.

Improved permanent placement outcomes for LAC in Hillingdon - improvement in the
performance as measured by the national adoption score card.

Reduction in the number of children moved further than 20 miles from their home
address to minimum - less than 10% of LAC (36).

QA framework provides evidence of good quality social work practice on all
assessments undertaken by Coram (80% judged good or better and no inadequate).

Measurements of progress (12 months)

Fully implement the new service model and ensure fully staffed.

Maintain allocation of all assessments to meet national standards of quality and
timeliness - 100% within timescale.

Audits and data indicating consistently good quality analysis of assessments and
timely presentation to Panel (80% good or better and no inadequate judgements).

Number of in-house foster placements to increase to 110 by April 20116.
The proportion of IFA placements to be less than 40%.

Reduction in the number of children moved further than 20 miles from their home
address to minimum - less than 10% of LAC (36).

Looked After Children receive good outcomes within 12-18 months (return home, long-
term fostering, adoption, SGO, Connected Persons).

This work stream's continued success will form the baseline to deliver to Hillingdon’s
vision for children.

Status of the work stream: In implementation via action plan.

Version 1 final

Page 26 Page 14 of 20



Appendix 1

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan

Work stream 6: Embedding new ways of working and
improved practice management arrangements

To improve the overall standard of practice and social work intervention across Children’s
Social Care Services. The aim is to deliver effective, timely and safe service interventions
for the most vulnerable children in our community. This will include the strengthening of
practice management arrangements and the level of professional supervision, training and
guidance offered to all social work staff. The service will improve the level of practice
through consistent management oversight, and practice recording on Protocol electronic
recording system. Activities will include:

e To support better outcomes the staffing model and any changes to be aligned with
delivery demand (service demand flow map).

e To support best practice the staffing and casework model will provide stable and
balanced (represented by the London ADs work on Standards as well as Hillingdon's
view of average caseloads minus one).

e To ensure good management oversight and support of good practice, achieve a flatter
structure to deliver clearer accountability by expanding the number of team managers
with small (maximum 6) teams of social workers.

e Invest in expert advanced practitioner roles in line with the Munro principle to build
practice capability at the point of delivery.

e Invest in staff professional development and clearer alignment with service
requirements.

e All changes to be made with transparency, consultation and care.

Outcomes of the work stream

This will deliver a social work structure built around a model of one team manager with a
maximum of 6 social workers to supervise. This will strengthen accountability for good
practice within the teams and will maintain the POD structure. This model will also invest
in the advanced practitioner role to work with the QA service to improve practice quality,
and offer practice leadership in line with the POD model. It will be aligned with workforce
planning and have clear social work pathways with an embedded training needs analysis.

Effective accountability and management oversight of practice improvement activity.
Measurement of progress

e Simplified practice management structure in place - April 2015.

e The average case load across the service remains at or below 18 per qualified
social worker (in accordance with the service requirement's).

e All social workers receive regular monthly supervision.

Page 27

Version 1 final Page 15 of 20



Appendix 1
London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan
e Monthly QA audit report - percentage of work judged good or better - 35 % by end
March 2015, 50% by end September 2015, 80% end March 2016.

e Performance data - weekly target to allocate all CIN, CP and LAC cases, meet
statutory reviewing and visiting targets, with weekly meetings with managers to
review performance against target. In 2015-16 a feasible benchmark of case
duration for CIN and CP will be able to be set, as well as step up and step down
targets, and we should achieve the 26 week proceedings target to ensure more
timely decisions for children.

Status of the work stream: In implementation via action plan.

Page 28

Version 1 final Page 16 of 20



Appendix 1

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan

Work stream 7: Effective Quality Assurance

The work stream will ensure the full and effective implementation of the QA Framework,
embedding a consistent approach to improving the quality of practice to ‘good’ as a norm
and better outcomes for children. To ensure demonstrable measurable outcomes for
children and their families with all performance information linked into effective
mechanisms for achieving change. The QA framework will support managers to have a
strong oversight of the practice and outcomes within their teams. Activities include:

e Implementation of the new QA Framework by 1st April 2015.

¢ Collation and analysis of Quality Assurance systems across the service,
incorporating improvements achieved through good practice and learning to inform
future planning and promote improvement. This will include:

Court Tracker

Fostering Panel Advisor

Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) Prevention Manager
MASH process

Transfer and allocation process

Practice Development Mentor role

Dispute resolution process

O O O O O o o

e Embedding and improving the Signs of Safety CP Conference process to ensure
consistent multi agency involvement with SMART plans being achieved.

e Implementation of effective Independent Reviewing Service developing a robust
constructive challenge, mid-point reviewing and dispute resolution process.

e Implementation of tracking and improving completion of all CP Conferences and
LAC reviews to be completed within statutory timescales.

¢ Voice of the child being evident throughout CP and LAC processes through
relaunch of Viewpoint by April 2015.

e Review and implementation of new ways of working within the Local Safeguarding
Children’s Board (LSCB) ensuring consistent and robust multi agency responsibility
and ownership.

e Implementation of Practice Standards in each area of the service to support
workers in defining their role and expectations that are clearly promoted.

e Development of the Independent Domestic Violence Advocacy (IDVA) Service
across Hillingdon supported by the MOPAC initiative, following review by the end of
July 2015. To include areas of support being increased in MASH, Housing and
Health.

e Development of the YIDVA (Young People’s IDVA service) to ensure peer on peer
abuse is tackled consistently.

e FGC (Family Group Conference) Service will be developed to offer FGCs at any
point along the CYPS Social Care continuum to prevent case escalation and further
statutory intervention.

Page 29

Version 1 final Page 17 of 20



Appendix 1

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan

Development of a CSE Strategy, Missing Person & Runaway Protocol to be
implemented by the end of March 2015. Using learning from a recent joint
operation with the Metropolitan Police which led to a successful conviction, and
developing the new role of Child Sexual Exploitation Prevention. A local CSE
strategy addressing CSE in Hillingdon which consists of key strategic objectives in
line with 'Pan London Operating Protocol' to include multi agency partners.

Outcomes of the work stream

An approach orientated around outcomes rather than processes will support
practice managers to embed scrutiny and practice learning from audit into daily
supervision and management in a rigorous way.

Improved QA Framework that drives improvement and learning across the service
promoting Individual, Team and Service Development Plans.

Evidence of good practice models identified and implemented across the service as
appropriate.

A robust Reviewing Service that quality assures consistently promoting good
practice and challenging practice areas that require improvements.

The child's journey is evident that their views are considered in all aspects of
decision making.

Structure and professional membership of the LSCB will be appropriate and will
drive improvements in multi agency working across Hillingdon.

A robust and effective IDVA / YIDVA service that works with all services providing
support in areas of domestic abuse, thus responding and sharing skills to address a
wider cross section of Hillingdon in a more collaborative way.

FGC will reach prevent step up or escalations of concerns by targeting lower level
case work.

A 'CSE strategy' to be progressed to enable all professionals to develop confidence
and practice when identifying and responding to CSE concerns.

Measurement of progress (6 months)

Version 1 final

Launch the new QA Framework in April 2015.

Percentage of work judged good or better - 35% by the end March 2015, 50% by
end September 2015.

Monthly Quality Assurance findings will drive improvement across the service
developing clear action plans that are SMART.

CP Conferences and LAC reviews are completed within statutory timescales (95%)
LSCB responsibility in relation to safeguarding will be evidenced through audit and
findings each quarter.

Implement Dispute Resolution Process with appropriate outcomes achieved in
relevant timescales that improve outcomes for children and young people.
Implementation of Mid-point Reviews for care plans and child protection plans.
Viewpoint will see increased response to completing and evidencing child's views
at specific meetings and assessments and providing feedback on the quality of
practice.

Page 30 Page 18 of 20



N Appendix 1
London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan

o |IDVA service performance measures will indicate an improved and more targeted
service.

e Higher rate of FGC referrals and good outcomes to prevent escalation to tier 3
services or becoming looked after.

e Development of CSE data in order to measure the level of concerns in line with
national and local trends, with clear targets to be measured with the 'action plan’
being reviewed quarterly and timescales measured against effectiveness. An
annual review with new targets set as required. An action plan progress update to
be reported to the LSCB board twice annually.

Measurement of progress (12 months)

e Fully embedded QA Framework.

e Percentage of audit compliance 100%.

e 80% of audits indicate good quality practice and evidence of the child’s voice in all
assessments and plans by end of March 2016.
80% of all social work judged good or better by end of March 2016.
Structured Review of Performance and Monthly Quality Assurance findings will
continue to drive improvement across the service developing clear action plans that
are SMART.
Fully embedded Mid-point Review and Dispute Resolution Process
100% of all CP Conferences and LAC reviews are completed within statutory
timescales.

e 100% of CSE cases tracked and all have effective risk assessments and plans
recorded.

Status of the work stream: In implementation via action plan.

Page 31

Version 1 final Page 19 of 20



Appendix 1

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan

Appendix 1 - Children's social care improvement action
plan 2014-16

See separate action plan.

Version 1 final gﬁﬂ@u?@ Page 20 of 20



$$9004d JuawWw)INIOBI By} S)ey|Ioe} 0} pasn Aemyjed Jsaied MaN -

painas paysi|qeysa
us3g Mou sey [ EITIEN swweJboud yuawy)inioal sy} Jo Yed se pajuswa|dwl dV Pue MS ‘MSON Kemuyred Jsa.eo e ey sisod spaau [enpiAlpul Buioddns si sunjonis
uonoe pajajdwo pue padojanap usaq aAey sjsod pajabie) Joj Aemyjed Joaied mau ay] -| Joy uonduosap qol pue ajioid qol pamauay oM [e10os [euoissajold (I (@91 A9 0gL|as1 4Aq 0gL asi 199180 9INSUS 0} PAPPa]IS 3] 0) ABMUIEd HIOA [B100S| 9'L
910C Uer Ul Je}s 0} anp 810w UM SJAD Ul SMSON L | 81dm 81dy} G102 98 e sV -
pajeulwls) aq ued juswAojdws Jo Joesuod Jidy} swwesboid
JASY 2y} a)9|dwoo Ajuojoeysijes jou op Asy) Ji Ing Jyess Jusuewlad aie S,ASON IV -
aswuweJboid ayy ybnouyy
way) poddns pue swiweiboid ay} o) JoBeUBL BUI|/I0SSSSSE JIBY) Pue Way} sjonpul
ays pue JOJeUIPI00d JASY dY) OS|E S| 81e) [e100S 1o} 8ol Juswdojaraq pue 90IOPIOM
Buiusea ay) ‘awweifoid JASY dU}) OJUO [0IUS SIBNIOAN [BI00S palienD AIMaN |V -[8|qels e ajeald pue siabeuew ainjny moib o}
Ayunpoddo Buneaso pue ‘uopbBulliH ui sysod wua}-Buo| uopBuliH ul ulewal 0} SISNIoM
Buiobug ISAV| Jexom [eroos Jusuewlad dn Bupje} SMSON| Jeye sieak g ‘sisod siom [eroos payiienb Ajmeu asay abeinoous 0} Jno jes syuswalinbal
pajajdwo 0} Joddns Jo Jayjo psdueyus pue payIpow e sapnjoul swwelboid uogonpur 8y -|ul Buninsal swweiboid JASY piepuels ybiH ul urewal S, \SON JO %001 | Bulob-uo |S5L0Z/€0/S)L azl pUE SPIEPUE)S JES|D Y)IM ‘pappaqwd aq o) Joddns ISAY| G'L
%/ ¥e 90Uepua)je JUSLIND 8y} YIM ‘Payoune| sem
uBredwed Juswyinioal ay) aouls AjIpea)s pasealoul sey sajebsjep Jo Jequinu ay] -
abpajmouy|
awuwelboid ayy ojuo Jeys Bunsixa Bunjooq siebeuepy woly Jo ssadoid wio4 119y} 8jepdn 0} uononpul Jaysaljal e BulAigdal Je)s ualnd
6 0 sJale)g MaN ay) ybnouyy pusye o} sajebajep syoadxe / SejAuUl pue yuow Alons awuwelboid uononpul yum aoueldwod 9,00| 9ASIYde 0} pue ‘eonoeld piepuels
EIET[IheYsuns swwelboid ay] G0z Arenuer ul payoune| sem swwesBboid uoponpul Aep 4 v - pajoNpul JJels ||| Papusie SIsxIom mau Jo %00L| Buiob-uo |SL0zZ/L0/L0 asi Se pappaquid aq 0} JoJom mau Aians 1oy ssevoud uononpul| |
pamainal Buiaq
Apuauno ale suoneslidde gz pue pasojd AJuadal aABY SJUSWSSILBAPE Z aSeyd - ™
(soxe|ANS Buipnjoxa) %G9 O} uasl sey yejs wiad Jo 9, Jualind ay] - (ep]
1MSO UL 'SdA Ul L 'Sy Ul Z ‘'v4 Uiz *olo ul ¢ - Q
S92 O
JuswAoldwsa aid Buipuad aie  ‘Yasey ul Buiuels | ‘ge4 ul Buiels | ‘jsod ul e ¢ - ©
opeuw syuswyulodde g - [l
SI9MIOAN [BIO0S
QIO Ul ¥ "LMSQ Ul'G -
opeuw syuswjuiodde g -
SI9YION [EID0S JOIUSS
SdAUIZ ‘V4 Ul | -
SYY Ul L *DIQ Ul "IMSO Ul ¥ Y4 Ul G 'SdA Ul € -
3090 JuswAoldwa aid buipuad si | ysod ul aie 9, -
apew syuswijuiodde /| -
slabeue|y wea |
:0)9]dWOO JSowe S| SaloUeoeA Juswabeue|y
0} JUBW}INIDBI L18QOJOQ Ul PApN[OUOD Ubledwed JUBWNIOaI By} JO | aseyd - 90IAIBS B} UIYIM Jusuewlad 0} %G8
s1}ob1e] "90IAI9S AU} UIYJIM SISMIOM [BI00S JopesT uejd Juswanoidwi 8Y) Y)IM aul| Ul 99IAISS By} JO
ssaiboud u| JapeaT ay} Aq paaibe ue|d uonisuel] -|  Aouabe o} Jusuewwad jo ojes ayy anoudw| 8y Aq paaibe ue|d uonisuel] | 910z/€0/10 | §10Z/S0/L0 HH spaau 8y} }eaw 0} AlaAljap 0} ybnoly) ssadoud juswyinioay| €1
*,uopBul|jiH Je Jea.ed |euoissajoid '0}@ poddns ‘Yiom QOd ‘uoisinzedns
InoA mouB, 0} S19xJ0M [EID0S B)IAUL [[IM 9M puE uBledwed Jusw)inIoas ay) ul abessaw Jo >oed ay) Ul paulejuoo uoneue|dx3 ~eoe|d}Iom uasoyo
211)3Yy Aoy B aq |IM SIY L “1oUN0D 8y} ulyim juswdojarsp [euolissajoid pue uoissaiboid Japean] 118y} se uopbi Bunepisuod syueojdde uaym aouepinb
ajdwo 19a1e9 Buluyep Aues|o padojanap usaqg sey a)ijold qor Jo3IOA [BI00S Mau V| ay) Aq paaube ueld uonisuel] [un pjoy uQ ¥H A9 0491|510z/20/10 | SLOZ/¥0/L0 HH pUE UOIJEWIOJUI JUBAS|SI |[e Ulejuod o} syoed jueoiddy| z'|
1ouno 8y}
SSOJOB JUSW)INIDAI JBY)0 JOj PASN S JSJE] ||IM UYDIUM ,8)IS-010IW, JO [epod Jusw)inioal
M3U B UO P3JESIUNWIIOD 84 [|IM SIY L "UOIjelaunuual aARadwod pue [apow
Aianijep ‘uonoallp ‘sassa00ns s,|1ounoY ayy Buienoiue Apesio uonisodoid buolys 19XI0\\ [B100S B JO 8]0J By} JO suonejoadxs
paJioy B BUUS Yym dojanap |im am A u| *,puelq JuswAoldws, s,j1ouno) ay) buidojarsp pue Jayo ued uopbulliiH yeym jo Buipuejsiapun poob
aja|dwio uo Buissno04 "BuneyJew Jusw)iNIoal ul asijeloads oym Buuad yim piay sbunssiy| -auluo pue pajepdn a)isgam 610z 1das Ag |euonouny ajisgem MaN| 91.0z/€0/L0 | SL0Z/¥0/L0 HH e oAy 0} sjueojdde aAoadsoud s|qeus o) ajisqem ayepdn| L)L
s10z 3des snjeyg suonoy - ssaiboid sjebie] Aay SsuojsalliN ajeq pu3z | ajeq yeis pea uonoy JEN

)sod sabueyp

pue sainsea|\ aduew.oad

Z Xipuaddy

juswdojanaq 92100 : | WEAIISHIOM

~




lejoL

%0

%EE

%L9

abejuaoiad

onels

ssaiboud u|

pajejdwon

JaquinN

91/G10Z 10} SNOILOV 40 SNLVLS

Page 34

siabeuew

J19y3 yim sueyd juswdojanap juswabeuew a)a|dwoo o} siebeuepy 9o1AI8S IV -
$90IN0Sal S,uaIpliyd
slebeue|y wea] Jo poyod jusuewad ® Aousuewlad ‘Q10 AV |vavd / ueld juswdojansp iy} ul pajesodiodul souewlopad
U} JO JuaW)INIDAI [NJSS8INS BUIMOJ|0} “{ JOUEND Ul 9OUSWWOD ||IM pue siabeuew uojssaiboid Joaieo pue| ued Juswdojansp Juswabeuew pue JO sainseaw Jes|d yyum so1oeud Jisy) poddns o) siebeuew
ssaiboud uj| e 1o} (BUUBH WOU) pauoissIWWOD Usaq sey Buluiely Juswdojansp Juswabeuey -| Joddns jo ueld Jes|o e aney sisbeuew ||y e aAey 0} siabeuew Jo %001 | 9L02/#0/1L0 | SL0Z/¥0/1L0 | Buipsienbajes s.uaipiiyd Ay |e Joj paje|dwod aq o} ueld Juswdojaaap juswabeuep| 6L
(yusuewuad
10 Aouabe) juswAojdwa Jo syaam oM} }s.l} 8} UlyIm Bulurel) pue uononpul uona|dwod %00| Seyoeas Yavd ‘ue|d uonoe sy} Yyim
vavd panedal aney siabeuew Buisialedns jey) ainsua 0} siabeuejy a2IAI8S ||V - I| ul 8|0 Aq sanoud pajoadxs $90IN0S3J S,UBIPIIYD Spaau asay) }osw
‘}Jo paubis usaq aAeY s,yAVd| @AeY M yoiym ‘edeid ul yavd » Aousuewlad ‘QID Ay 0} ue(d yuswdojansp 1 HVYIAS e Buirey pue spaau Bujuies|
910z Iudy Ul ueys ey} 2INSUS 0] USYEMSPUN aJe SHO3YD| B 9ABY aJeD [BID0S UaIP|IyD Ul pue BuiAnuap! ‘Jesom ay) Jo saonoeld Juauno Buikuspl
ssaiBoud uj| 0} anp ale SMAIAGI [ENUUE PUE € JOUEND J3A0 8€|d 400} SMaIAS) YAV d Yiuow g - ‘Jels ||e 0} In0 pajjod 8q 0} s}able) YAV d IJels 3iom [e100s e G0z AeN Ag| 9102/70/10 | SL0Z/¥0/10 | BulpienBajes s,uaipiyD Ay | Ul ISNgol s pue awi uo uoije|dwod %00 L SaYoeal Yavd| 8’}
(dlid) ssauonnoeld
Juswanoidwi ao13oeI1d auy Aq papoddns aoeid Buie) suoisiaiadns qOd ApybiupoS -
1010811 JUB)SISSY U} pue siabeue|y 901AIeS UsamIaq PasSNISIp
s1 abeddijs Aue pue siseq Ajyyuow e Uo paiojUOW aq O} SANURUOD SIY| "suoisirladns
10 A1anijep 8y} yym Jueldwiod %68 Sem 901AI9S 8y} GL0Z 920 1Y "Siseq Ayjuow e
Uo palojiuow pue Jess ||e Joy aoe|d ul Jexoel) uoisirledns pue siabeuely wes) mau
10} SNO0J JES|D PUB UONBLIEA S9)BJISUOWSP YdIym Jayoes} uoisiriadns pajuswaldwy -
(yusuewuad Jo
Kouabe) JuswAoldwa Jo syoam omj sy 8y} ulyIm Buluresy pue uononpur uolsiaadns
palojuow aq panlaoal aney siabeuew Buisiaiadns jey) painsua aAey siabeuejy 99IAISS ||V -
0} 8NURUOD |[IM
pue ,Buiobug foljog
- pajojdwo), uoisiniedng s,uopBullliH yum aul| Ul Jjejs o) uoisiazadns apiaoid o) siebeuew ||y - $92IN0s8J S,uaIp|IyD sanss| Aousjadwod yym Buljesp ul
0} ,ssaiboud uj, g Aousuewlad ‘QID AV isngol pue Jesjd aq 0} sassado.d juswabeuew souewlopad
woJy pabueys ¢ O s)ipne aonoeud Jenbas Aq pajuswalddns si )| *SAAD SSOIOE pajuswaldwl uoysiaadns jo Aianilep pue pue Buipiodal Buipnoul ‘Aisaljep pue soueldwod
BRI - pajajduio pue padojansp usaq sey |00} Jipne pue Bulojiuow uoisiAiedns aAIsusyaIdwod v - ay) ur soueldwo) %001 | GL0zZ 1deS | 5L02Z/70/10 | Bulpsenbajes s,ualpiiyd Ay %001 8INSud 0} PapPPaqIa 3q 0) SaINJONIIS uoisiedng| 27|
«mwhcmuw%_wmm_._ 5 snjejs suonoy - ssaiboid sjebue] Aoy pue sa h:mmam-wﬂe_mawh_:s_mc. Jopad ajeq pu3 | ajeq Meis pea uonoy JEM|

Z Xipuaddy

juswdojanaq 92100 : | WEAIISHIOM



Qv pue 43 1oy
P3)E00]|E HI0M %001 "9|BISBWI) 0} Pa}o|dUIod SJUSWISSASSE JO % /6
*Aemuspun UoIISUB} Yim pappaquia Ajiny si [opow SaxejANS 8y -

SO0 2y} yum sbunesw Buuojuow souewsopad Auspenb

ale alay) ‘Jayun4 aonoeud jo Ajenb auj ysa} sabeuely saxe|fyS
pue Jabeue|y 901A19S ‘J0J0alIQ JUBISISSY 9y} d1aym Bunasw
sanss| pue ysl Apybiupo "sbunesw aonoeld Apjeem ale alay] -

(z'2 03 19401) SV HET OJuI UonISUEl) pasade) e st asay ] -
9102

yole|y Jo pua Aq pajoadxa JOBJUOD JO UMOP Uny *(SDQ) SAJIAIBS
s,uaip|IyQ Jo Jojoaug Aq 108foid Jo mainal [N “pappaquid SaXEIANS -

paysiiqelse
sl yIomawely diysioupied "SaNss| pue sysi uo pjay a.le sbunesw

ul, wouy pabueyo [T ek I
Jenbal pue Jas aie SI0}edlpu| SoUBWLIOHSd JYBIsiano Joenuo) -

sey snieig [ L)

“(Remyped

s,ualpliyD Jo Qv ‘dD ‘NID ‘uonuansaiu| Alie3) yjom sbuipsasoid
-a1d pue Bujuueld |ebs| uo snooy Jea|d e yym ‘Aousuewad o}
Buluue|d aied [e100s 0} [el1ajal WOl Hiom jo ndybnoiyy parosdw) -

‘sajeosauwl} U
Ajpuanbaly atow paje|dwod Buiaq }4om mau pue sased mo_v_omn_
O UONONPAJ B} Ul USSS 3 ||IM S}NSSY "SWES) }IOM [B100S 8y} Ul
sainssaud ajeins||e ||Im saxe|Ays Aq papiroid Ayoeded pappe ay] -

'SI0}EDIPUI JO JUSLIBASILOR SMOYS PUE PIJE||0D S| BJep SOUBWIONA -

‘play aJe sbupnesw sanssi pue sysu Jeinbay -

'Pa0IN0sSal pue Paysiqe)sa S| SIAIOS JUSWSSISSY -

"SYJUOW 9 JO} }IOM [2100S AIOJNJe)S 0} palIa)al-al Jou
pue 901A19S AIOJNje)S B 9A18091 JoBUO| Ou Saljiwe) % -

"shep G| uiynm Odol Jo %001 Buuealeq -

Juswssasse Jad sAep og jo abeiane ue yym
Xew sAep Gy UIYJIM SJUSISSSSE JO %00} Butieajaq -

"PaaU Ul UBIP|IYD ||E JO SJUBISSSSSE pue SySe) AInp
e)EepapuN |IMm Jey) 8o1AIes AInp yeem g e bupuawsidwy -

pue paalbe s| [apow A1aAlBp pue m‘_oymo_u:_ Aoy

piepuejs
ao1joeld a|qejdasde ue o} pue
aouewlopad poob jus)sisuod Buimoys
JOBJJUOD O} JOAI|BP ABY) Jey) Ul Wea)
soYE|ANS WOl pauleyqo si anjep jsag

a1eD [e100S

9102/¥0/L0 | ¥1L02/LL/LO e

awi) Juanbasqgns 10 puodas Ueld dD B UO UBIP|IYD JO %01 -

%81 18 SI Sjel [el19}1-01 B} € JOUEND JO PUS dU} Y -

%86 Sem 9|eosaw} M JNO PaLLIED SJUBWISSISSE - G1.0Z 990
%.6 SEM 9EOSAWI} UIY)IM JNO PBLLIED SJUBISSASSE - G|0Z 1dog
%Y9 SeM S3[edSaWI} UIYIM JNO PALLIED SJUSWSSISSE - 11,07 1doS
:sumop-da)s JO 9, PUB S]edSaLLI} UIYIM N0 PALLIED SJB SJUSISSISSY -

SOYEIANS UM JOBIUOD INO puUd
pue asnoy-ui swea) 1, |je buug o) uejd am 910z Je Jo pus Ag "91.0Z
Je\-gad ul saxelAis woly Aeme aarow o) 8oeld ul ueyd Jajsuel] -

BuiobuQ -
pajejdwon

10618} %02
-G ‘aWI} puodas e ue|d e 0} }08[qNns ualp|iyo pue d)jel [eLa)al-9Y -

(sexeIANS) Sy Buiuogouny -

"SyjuOW g Joj YIoMm [e100s AIOJNje)s 0} paLiajal-al
JoU pue ad1AI8s AIOJnje)s B BA190a1 19BUO| Ou SaljIWey %

jos ejep Ayoedeo pue puewasp

BIA U83S - (Y40M N|D / 4D Buunp pue
Juswssasse }sod ‘sjoejuoo Je) aied
|eoos ui syuiod Aay je umop Buiddels
Sal|lwkey Ul 9SE3IOUI U 8] [|IM 3JaY L

HSYIN
Jebeu]
Bulob-upg Jabeuepy ao1nI0S

$102/¥0/L0 €T

So3EIANS UNIM JOBJUOD INO U
pue asnoy-ur swes} 4 |le Buliq o} ued am 910z LB JO pud Ag 9102
IBN-GB4 Ul Sa¥elAiS woly Aeme anow o} soeyd ul ueyd Jajsuel] -

Jayjebo) swes} Sy g ey) Buuq 0} 910z go4-uer ut

L Jayjoue }inioal o} sueld aie aiay) pue Wwes} Sy ay) 0) pajuiodde
uaaq sey (N 1) Jebeuely wea] jusuewlad | ‘Aemiapun aie

sjsod JayIom [B100S pue 9|0J JoBBUB WES | dY} 0} JUSWHINIODY -

yjuow jxau
3y} JOAO swea} oMy [euly Y} Joj 9oed axe) o) Juswyinioal Buiobug

'91.0Z 924 Ul BUILE]S 2.8 SLWEes) OM} }Sil} 8U] "SAXe|ANS WOy JOAD
Buie) aq [|Im OYM SWwes} 3I0M [e100s § JInoal o) sue|d ale aiay] -

ssaiboud u|

9102 UoieN Aq ysod ui yess |y

‘[opow 89IAIBS
M3U U} ynm aul| Ul swes | AIng  Jo uonejuswaldw
pUE JUBLUYSI|GEISS BU} SALIP [|IM JUSWUHINIOBI BY |

HSVIN
1abeu)

1 90IAISS JUBLISSBSSY
9102/£0/10 | 10Z/80/10 | J9BBUBI SOIAISS | PUE [BLI3}SY SNIOBHS UE USIIGeISS 0]

~

UONJEWIOJU| PUE 8DIAPE YBNOI) Pa)SISSE SJOBJUOD 89f PUE SBDIAIS
djay Aues o) ssoioe paddals s}oejU0D /L€ ‘BIeD [BI00S S,UBIP|IYD O}
dn paddajs s}oBJU0D £/Z SMOYS UOIJEWIOJU] SWONO0 d|qe|ieA. 8y -

ssao01d

HSVIN Ino 891A18Sq0 0} saljlioyine [eoo] Jayjo Aq sisenbai uazop

B J|ey uaaq os|e sey a1y "991joeld }saq MaIAaI 0} HSYIN U} PajISIA
0OS[e aABY SISSIADE JUSWILISAOD Y PUE ABMION “UOPUOT Ul JUSIOS
1SOW 8y} se HSYIN uopb pabpajmodjoe aAeyY 891j0d 18IN BYL -

juswabeuew pjoysaly} pue

Aouajsisuod Jo sjans| ybiy sajessuowap Buijew uoisioap Jo MaIADY -
Buisealnap s|eajas ul

paj|nsal sey ‘SUoijoe ssnosip 0} SexelANS uim sbunesw Apybiupiod -

Buiuresy Buipienbajes paieoal
aney (sjoid oul) yeys skemuly ysig pue Aousby Japlog Mn -

9]eosawl} UlylM paja|dLoDd SJUSWSSISSE JO % /6 -
aoe|d ul aJe pue paje|dwod usaq aaey sj090joid HSYIN -

sbupesw uoisiAladns Ul pasuapine
usaq sey yolym ‘paiaaijep Bulurel) pue pasibe spjoysaly] -

suonesado NS4 pue 389 uo
SN20j 0} 8q |[IM sqol J1ay} - awi} ||y HSYIA Ul Buppiom aq |jim yuablaeg
aAd8)e( € pue Jdag Ul PalE)S OUM JaIj0 891104 IS B SI aJay] -

panalyoe aoueldwod 1oy Jobie)y %001 plemio} Buiob Juswnoop
puaJ} Jipne Ajyyuow Ino uj papodal 8q |IIM YDIym JO S)insal 8y |00},
Jipne 21uoJ3o8i8 Ajyjuow ay} jo Jed mou si Buiyew-uoisioap Jo Jpny -

Jo)oal1(Q Juelsissy ay) Aq palieyo aie pue aoe|d Ul aie pusye
siauped A8y Jno Ydiym Ul pUE papuajie [[om ale Yyoiym sbuneaw
diysieupied oib6sjel)s pue sBuiesw uonesado HSYIN Jeinbay -

BuiobuQ -
pajajdwon

yeys abel] pue HSYIA |e 0} uaalb Buuiel pjoysaiy] -

‘Juswssasse Joj Buissaiboid
SOSED ||B UO JOYEW UOISIOap [eul 8y} Sulewal Jobeuep HSYIN auL -

1deouod HSYIN
8y} pue Buijew uoisioap aJed [e100s a1ojdxa 0) steuped o) bulule)
Jo Auanljap pue spjoysaiyy buipseBal uoissnosip Jouped Bulob-uQ -

jobue) 9,66 ‘pauueld Buyew-uoisioap Jo IpnyY "HSYIN pue
abey] wouy Bujew-uolsioap Jus)sisuod bulesipul e}ep pue sjpny -

sinoqublau
|eonsie)s Yim aulf u s pJeog Juswanoidw|-jjos 09X JaIyD
uopuoT ay] Aq papuawiwodal Se siojedipu| A9y punose ejeq -

%06
3n0qe S1 HSVIN Ad Bujes v (Ul Jo SSoUsAROZY -

sojel [elsjol-oy -

uoljewlojul pue ao1Ape ybnouy) pajsisse sjoejuo)
saoInes djay Alues o) ssouoe dalg
9D1A19S YJOM [B1D0S AIOJNIE)S Salnuapl AlJes|d HSYIN -

paje||0o si aul| pJeog juswaroidw|
-J|9S 08Xg JaIyD uopuo] ay| Aq papuswiwiosal
se siojeslpu| Aoy Buimoljoy punole ejeq -

Page 35

HSYIN
Jebeu]
Jabeuepy ao1nI0S

swea)
HSVI pue abeu | sy} Aq Buiyew

9102/¥0/L0 | GLOZ/Y0/LO -UOISI03P JUBISISUOD pue panosdw| |z

§10zZ 3dasg

3sod sabueyn suonoy - ssaiboid

smeyg

sjebie] Aay

SQUOJSI|IIN PUB SAINSES|\ SoUBWLIONA]

sjeq pu3 | sjeq yeis pes uopoy 104

Z Xipuaddy

JUBWISSASSY B S[elI9)aY pue HSVIN ‘@beli) Buiroidwy iz wealys y1opm



Page 36

%0 |

%Ll _ %E8 abejusoiad

) JaquinN
pajeidwod 91/510Z 104 SNOILOV 40 SNLV1S

"L 1y SI J9qUINU 80URIBJB1 MU B *( Weal)s 3I0M) S80InN0say S,ualp|iyD Jabeuely eo1n1eg 0) HSYN/abel ] JeBeuely ao1A18g woly pabueyd usaq sey uonoe siy} 1oy peaayl| LT

paiojuow

uj, Eoc.vmm:mco
sey snjeis

BuiobuQ -

89 0} YAQI 314 G0 PUB HSVIA ulyym pajuiodde yAQ| awi Ind -

pue G102/60/81 Uo 89e|d 500} UBIP|IYS UO JoedW] PUB AQ UO UOISSSS

S PUE JUSWSSasSY 8y} O} |00} UONEOYNUAP] YSIY HSYA-YAYYD ol
40 sa|dioutid 8y} SBPNIIUI YIIYM |00} JUSWISSSSSE HSU pajusa|du] -

COECUREY Ajusapl 0) HSYIN 0} 8101 isieoads AQ JaAlep o} diysiauped HSYI -

pajuiodde

€ 19A9] 0} dn Bulutes siayy paje|dwod

aney yejs abel] '910z/10/Gl Uo aoe|d axe} 0} anp S| 1xau ay)!
1sl14 'gDS7 ybnouyy pauueld usaq sey yejs |je Joy Buluien AQ -
HSYIA Ul 18310M AQ Pa)EDIPap B MOU S| d1ay] -

XLJEW UONEIuSp! AQ SOpeUleg Jo pue swes)

SSU AQ UNM Paljuapl saljiwe) 0} PaIajo S0IAISS 90UBYUS pue

‘ue|d pue ABajens AQ UM pasul| 8q O} SAIAIOE MO -

‘spiemuo
UoJel\ S|00} AQ UO 321AI8S YO Aq Jno pajjos 8q o} Buuiel] -

"HSVIN Uiyim pajuiodde YAQH Swi Iind -

‘saljiwey AQ a1 Ajenb Juswssasse
ul Juswanoidwi Ue S)edIpul SIPNE PUE SISYIOAA [EID0S -

‘solpawal
|eBa Jo siojenadiad jsurebe siapio ul asealoul uy -

‘DS woyy saljiwey AQ Jo4 Busodubis panoisdw) -

HSYIN
jebeu)

§102/60/10 | §L0Z/+0/10 | 49BeuB B0IMIDS \Q 10} 18440 B0IAI8S BAoIdw| 9T

1a3 ul pakojdwa yejs jusuewlad %001} -
s|ellayal Buiwiopad uo 90IApE SUIBJUOD SO -

Aleyeipawiwi
Uym jleap ale pue sanss| Ajjuapl djay sbunsaw Ajyyuop -

ooe|d ul abeu] ypm Bulures |-g-| -

sasodind Bunoyiuow }o6pnq Joy 8oueul4 pue Jabeuew
Joluas usamjaq aoeyd aye} sbuneaw Ajyyuopy Juswabeuew
Joluas 0} Juas pue G0z |udy ul pajajdwod malaal 1 g3 |Ind -

uoljeJapIsuod juswanoid
J8YpNy 10} NIAIS 18 PasSNosIp aq 0} MalAey Hoysdeus -

HSVYIN
sey ainsealu [EITEES *Buipiodal 0} yoeoidde Jivy) ur Jua)sisuod ‘Burpodal Jo ssauljawi pue Bulpiooas Joa.0oul Jebeu| ‘malnal Joysdeus Buimoj|oy
ELNEIIIER] pajajdwiod obel| Wwolj sanss| 10w ou aJe aIsy] - UIBWS] PUE SWES) }I0M [B100S SY) YIM Sul| Ul JJom o} 13 -|  Jo A¥eam sanss| Jo Jaquinu moj Jodas wes) IOVIYL| Bulob-uo | 5L0z/40/10 | JoBeuely eo1nies | @anoeld Buipiooas yeys | @3 aroudwi| G2
ammmomuo.mn,_:wmw: 5 snjejg suopoy - ssaiboid sjabue] Aoy SQUOJSI|IIN PUB SAINSES|\ SoUBWLIONA] ajeq pu3 | ajeq Mels pea uopody 19y

Z Xipuaddy

JUBWISSASSY B S[eLI9)aYy pue HSVIN ‘@beli) Buiroidwy iz wealys y1opm



"paynuap| Aesjo sewooino palinbal Yym saljiey Jiayy
(euuad) Ayjenb pue sanssi sooeid| pue uaipjiyo ypm Juswabebus |njbuiuesw j0s|ja.1 0} SJUSWISSISSY -
UO SN0} B UM 910Z YdJeN Ul Aemuapun Buures) N1 MoN - ‘sisuonijoeld iom [elo0s
‘SJUSISSOSSE| |[B 0} N0 P3||0J PUB SIIAISS YT SY) WO} PSUOISSILILLIOD
syuswissasse Jo Indybnoiyy % /6 - ul @] $400] poob jJeym, uo Buiulel) SAI903I 0) SISMIOM [BIOOS - aq 0} swweiboid Bululel) Juswissasse uy -
awwesbosd "PaWLIJUOD 8] 0} djep Hejs awweibold - 5102
1} @0UEI|) UOPUOT }SOAA B} YyBnouyy paianijep aunf Aq pajuswajdwl 81njonys juswebeuew Map -
5@ 0} BNUNUOD [|IM S||IXS JUSLUSSSSSE UO Bulules) 8onoeId -| "GLOZ dUNf IS|, UO pajuawajdwi Sem aInjonl)s juswabeuew maN -
‘yausq
Jeys 0} sabessaw Aay Juswdojpaa( g Buluies ajepdn - *sa|Bojouoiyd ajep o} dn ulejuod 0} spJodal ase ||y -| s Hodail yejs pue palaaliep Buiaq si uoisiatadns Ayjenb
ybiy ajeaipul sAenins yejs pue Jipny uoisialadng -
SBWOIN0 ‘(Remyyed
JIpNEe 0} PajUI| SJOYJOM [E100S pue S, L YIM 3I0M Joaulp ybnoiyy|  s,uaipiyD 10 Qv ‘dD ‘NID ‘uonuaaiau] Ae3) spom sbuipaacosd|  Jjels o} papiodal pue paldAljap si uoisiaiedns %001 -
sjuawissasse ul jJuswanoidwi sonoeud buioddns aie s did - -a.d pue buluueld [eba| uo snooj Jesjo e yum ‘Aousuewad oy
Buiuueld a1eo [B100S 0} [ELI8)8) WOl Yiom Jo Indybnoiyy paroiduw) - 9102 yosep Aq poob %08 e
BuloBuo spom - G1L0gZ 99 Je Ja)aq Jo poob pabpnl %G5 e G0z 1des Aq poob 9,06 e
Buiobuo xiom - G0z 1das Je 1apaq 1o poob pabpnl %8y o sajouabe Jauped pue Ajiwe; ay) ypm G10Z yoJe\ Aq poob o,G¢ e
PaAaIyde - GLOZ YoJel Je Jaiaq Jo poob pabpnl 9,9t e | JuswabeBus >iom [B100S pUB SDI0A S,p|IYd U 103|J01 SJUSLISSISSY - :Buipesb ul Juswanoldwi Moys sppne ase -
:Buipesb ur juswanoidwi Buimoys syipne ase -
Ssaljlwey Yim pasn aq 0} S|9POW UoNUSAISIUI UO sjuawabpnl| ‘sypne 1MSD 1MSD 9y} Ul SJUSISSaSSE
ssaiboud uj Buiobuo - sypne Bujelapun s, L ul 8oueldwod %00 - pauwLIojul pue SISAjeue JESJO UIEJUOD SJUSWUSSISSE YIOM [BID0S - Bunjepapun siebeuew wea} u aoueldwod %001 -| 9102/70/L0 | SL0Z/+0/10 | 1oBeuely ao1nies 3I0M [e100s Jo Ajijenb ayy aroidw| 1
Apybiupoy Bunesw siabeuepy o
90IAI9S BY) Je PassnosIp ale pue paja|dwiod usaq aney
SHpNY ‘Sanss| passalppe aAey siabeuew asaym ueld uonoe Q
ue paledaid pue uoisiaiadns QOd pue souewiopad paypne O
aABY siauooRId Juswanoidw| 91eld G1.0Z IsnBny woid - o
(IWWS) Bunesw siabeue|y 901A19S 8y} Je siseq Ajyyuow (a N
nios pue paojiuow Bulaq ae suoisialedng -
paiojuow %L - €0
%08 - 20
%9L- 1O
:1MSD 1o} @ouewiopad uoisialedng
‘uanIb ale suoneue|dxs Jeajo ‘Inooo }, cwwon SIy) aleym uoisiniedns dod %001 -
BuiobuQ - jJuelsissy oy} 0} sHodau Ajyjuow aie asay | 1MSD Jjess Jo Juawdojenap pue uoisialadns
sey smeis BB CUIRE] swesy ||e ssoioe pajuswaldw usaq sey Jexoel) uoisinedng -| |- Buineoal ale ye)s Jey) sajealpul Uoisiaedns uo tonm._ Aupuon suoisiniadns Jo Asanljep pue aoueldwod %001 -| BuloB-uo | L0z/¥0/10 | Jebeuep aoinies |euoissajoud Jo [ena] ayy Buinoidwi| ¢
paJojiuow 'sase0 AI0Jnjess [|e JO UOEDO|[e %00 -
aq 0} anUUOD ‘puewap yym paubije
M pue Buiobug "UOWWOD 31 SUOIIEN)ON]} PEOJSSED PUE 3}I0M JO Indybnoiyy SI YoIym S91AISS Y} SSOIOE Jjeys Aouabe Jo asn a|qIxaj) Sl a1ay] -
- pajajdwo), Jo Buuojuow JejnBail s| 81ay] ‘gl S| peojased abelane
0} ,ssaiboid 8y} 9102 uer Jo sy ‘siseq JejnbaJ e U0 pamalral ale speojase) *Sa|[IWe} Jo} SBWoN0o poob ypum Jauuew Alpwiy
uj, woly pabueyd [Tl ITe 1 *90IAIBS BU} SO0 SBBIOAR |, :JUBLUNOOP SPIBPUBIS| B Ul USYEMSPUN S| SBSED 8U) UO USYELSPUN 3IOM U} PUB PEO[SSED ‘ualpiyo 8| Jo peojeseo abelone 1MSD J193}40M [100S paljijenb
BTSN pajsjdwod uopuOT Ypm aul| ul paaibie speojesed Joj yewyouag - s|qesbeuel yjm pajioddns ale SIBYION [BIO0S 8INSUB O] -UB 8ABY SIBXJO [B100S [IB 1) 8jedlpul jes ejep Apeapn| BuloB-ug | G10z/10/10 | JeBelepy soines Jad saseo g| - speojesed abelany| z'€
901AI9s Sy} ybnouy) papirold
aq ||Im uoisirold poddng Ajwe4 "pajuswajdwi pue paaibe
u9aq Sey aINJoNJIS UOHUBASIH Pue uojuaAlaiu| Aue3 ay] -
(z'¢ uonoe o) usyal)
3| 106.e) Je poob sulewsal JaxIom [e100s Jad peojased abelany -
pajeoo)|e yJom Aiojness %001 -
paiojiuow Kenuapun
aq 0} anUUOD a1e SmalAIa)uI pue o) pajinioal Buiag sysod || Buluiewsal g yium ‘sueld NIO/dD 0} 199[gns aJe ualpjiyd usym UONUSAIBIUI SIOM| Wwies) }I10M [e100S yoes
dde usaq aney (|\ 1) siebeue|y wes] jusuewlad g/ - YIOM JOBJIp Ul 8SBBIOU| PUB 82IAI8S pajabie) e aAladal saljiwe - |BIOOS SAISUSJUI Y)IM Jsisse 0} Jje)s poddns jinioay - 10z %28@ 0} 8Uo ‘siaxiom poddns Ajiwey Jniosy
‘Aemuapun ||s aie smalniajul pue Buiobuo si ubledwed
s)sod Jabeuew wea) pue 3iom [e100s
sey smeis LB CIIEEY Inisse0ons Bupyiom useq sey ubledwes Buisiaape ulew ay] - *Sal|ILey JOj SUWO0DINO POOH SABIYIE 0} SIIOPHIOM B|qe)S - JUBWINIOaI Jusuewldd -| GL02/ZL/L0 | §102/20/10 ||E 0} JuswnIoal Jusuewad |nysseoong| |'g
uwmnr_o%w%w%* 5 snjejs suoioy - ssaiboid sjabie] Aoy S9UO)SaI|N PUB S2INSEI|\ oUBLLIOMDd ojeq pu3 | ajeq Mejs uopoy 19y

~

Z Xipuaddy

SIMSD 8y} ulypim asnoead }om [e1dos Buiroidwyi :¢ weans YoM



ssaiboud uj

palojiuow

u|, wouy pabueyo VT ¥
sey snje)g [LEEILITTe

paiojiuow
aq 0} anUUOD

u|, wouy pabueyo LT
sey snes [[LLIEIC [T

§102 3das
3sod sabueyn

snjeis

%0 | %6z | %L abejusoieg
JaquinN
oners BRI psjeiduion 91/510Z 40} SNOILOV 40 SNLYLS
910z IMdy Aq siyy Juswajdwi “JjEls 81eQ |B100S
0} Ue|d "sJoBeuejy wesa | ypm )i julj pue | \\SD O} asnoy-ul 0} paJayo aq 0} sBuipasooid-aid pue sjuswssasse
aonjoeld Buliq 0} MAIA B YlIM 821AI8S 8U) JO ABMISpUN MBIASY - ul Bujuies) pue uole)Nsuod aseod Buiobuo uy - o0
panssi Buleq aJe s)0B.1U0O MU pue paje|dwod *9[eosaWI} Mau Ulyym pajejdwod ™
U99q 9ABY SMaIASY UONS|dWOD JBSU S| MAIASI SDIAISS - Buleq syuswissasse Bunuaied ul asealou uy - [
'swiea) \\S pue |eba| yym paaibe (@)
spom Jo Ayjenb pue JndyBnouyy o3 yul $S9JuUn S}29M g Ul paje|dwoo aq 0) sjuswissasse Bunualed - ‘palinbai S| JUSISSOSSE [BOIPAL/|E: e ssajun I
JESID B YJIM JOBIUOD SISNIOA Bunjualed Jo smalaal Jayung - sal|iwey sBuipasooid-aid |[e 10} asnoy- ul paja|dwiod
[CINVE Bulaq sjuswssasse Bunuaied ul asesioul uy - Dl
siy} 4oy [esodoud ay) uo Bulyalq pa|iejep ajesedas 9ag) "paseqal 1MSD 3oINIBS
2I0W YIOM 0} 9DIAISS SMOJ[E Jey) USXEUSPUN MBIASI | 9q 0} sjuswssasse Joj sjobie) payels A|n} S| 90IAI8S 80UQ - *Ja}J0 pue [020}04d Ysaljal 0} 8OIASS -[ 91.0Z/¥0/L0 | SLOZ/F0/L0 | JoBeuey 901A18S | Juswssasse Bunuaied aAoaYe apinold| L€
HSVIN 0} pajuiodde aq 0} Jaxiom YAQI
g0S7 pue Juswdojaraq g Buluiea Aq papiroid Buiuten AQ - AQ
Burousiiadxa ualp|iyo Joj sswwelboid o} bunsodubis J0)08};
SdAD 0} @ouepinB pue poddns pue sueld Ajajes Jeajo yum o} papuodsal pue payiuapl 1MSD ysu Bunuasaid ay) s| 82Us[OIA d)sBWoq
apinold 0} HSYIN 0} pajulodde Jayiom YAQ| Jusuewlad - IM WYAQI Jusuewlad (s uaipjiyd uo AQ jo Joedwi ay) jeyy Joayal syuswssassy| Bulob-uo | GL0z/ZL/1L0 | 1obeuepy adinias aIaym sased ||e Joj asuodsal pauyag| 9'¢
SI9MIOM [BIOOS [[e 0} 9| 0Z UE[ Ul N0 P3||0J SPJEpUB)S 8010eId -
pajuawa|dw
Bureq mou si 801AI9S UONUBAIBIU| AlleT Yim aoepajul Japeg -
ynsai
B SE YI0M O]d JO SAWOIN0 Sy} Ul Juswianoidw paylew e (lepod gam sainpasoud
uaaq sey alay) pue Jybiupoy A1ans ade|d axe} sdoysyiom O1d - 01}08[8 3Y}) X-11| UNIM Jeljie) dle SISX}IOM [BI00S -
pajuswajdwi pue pamalnal £102 Jayyebo | Bupopn, Buipnjour yels pue siabeuew
usaq aAey ssaooid Od pue sbuipesdoid-aid uo Bulurel] - Ile 0} Jno pajjol pue pajepdn usag sey aouepinb sonoeld -
suonuaAIBuI
panalyoy 'G1.0Z J0 Japenb jsuy ul s1oyjo pue siexoel| | Ajown Buealep ul jels poddns o} siojusw aonoeld ®
- suonuanajul Alpwiy Buusalep ul yeys poddns 0} sdid e HNoY Aq jno pajjol aq 0} yiom sbuipaasoid-aid uo Bulutes] - 2ouepInb pue spiepuejs aonoeld ||e MaIneY e
G10Z 190 Ul anp si yoiym ajepdn x ‘sjule|dwod Ul uononpal e s a1ay] e
-1 3} Jo Ued - souepinb pue spiepue)s ao)oeid |[e MaIASY *pUNOQ-aWI} PUB PSSNIO), *SUJUOW g 10} 3}IOM [B190S AIOJNJE]S O} PaLIael-al Jou
sweJawi) owodino si yoliym ueyd paaibe ue s| 819y} pue JUSWSAJOAUI INO JNoge| pue 82IAI9s Alojnje)s e aA190a1 JoBuo| ou saljiwe) % e
sAep Bupiom Q| 8y} UIyIM Yim Jjeap aiom sjure|dwod Jea|0 a.e sAaAIns pue ¥oeqpas) Ul siouped pue saljiwe) ‘yels - ‘uonuanIaul
pue g ‘| Jopen ||y ‘sjureidwod o} Buipuodsau ui souewiopad pue Juswssasse jsod umop dajg Ul asealoul uy e
panoiduw| "paAaIyoY - sjule|dwiod Ul Uoionpal e s aJay] e [sinoqubiau [EONSIEIS )M SUI| Ul pUE paonpal ale Sajel [BLIajol-ay - obeIone syeam 71-Z| SI iom sBulpasooid-ald e
obelane syeam -z | si yiom sbuipsasoid-aid e yibua) ur syyuow z|- g obelane sased 4O e
yuow 9 Buinoudwi si swiry ased abelane 49O pue NID e ‘uonuanlayul Alonjels yjuow g abesane sased N|D e
:s)|nsal eyep umop-da)s pue dn-da)g - Joy ajeldoidde ai1e s82IAISS S,UBIP|IYD OJUl PAAISOAI S|BLIDJSY - :sa)eolpul ejep umop-dajg pue dn-dajs -
sue|d ajeudoidde aney pue pajeosojje saseo Aioiness IV “%8L ‘paaibe sjebie) pue Jno pajjol si aIeY [BI90S S,UaIPIYD *SUIUOW g 10} 3}IOM [B100S AIOJNJE)S O) PaLIa)el-al Jou 1MSD Jauuew Ajown pue pauyep Apeso e ul
Je siajoweled Jobie) UIY)IMm paulewal SABY SaJel [BLIJ0I-9Y -|pue 90IAI9S UONUBAISYU| Alieg usamiaq aoepajul Bululino [000j0id -|  pue 8d1AIas AIojnje)s e aA1eoal Jabuoj ou saljiwey 9%, -| BuloB-uQ | 1.0z/¥0/10 | JoBeue adiAI8g | papiroid 818 SUOHUSAIBIUL YoM [eI100S |I| G'E
suoioy - ssaiboid sjabie] Aoy S9UO)SaI|N PUB S2INSEI|\ oUBLLIOMDd ojeq pu3 | ajeq Mejs pea uopoy 19y

Z Xipuaddy

SIMS9D 3y} ulypm asnoead yom [e1dos Buiroidwyi :¢ weans YoM



ssalBoad u)

sueld Aemyjed anoidwi 0} Jndui S, A BWOS Yim 910z Ales aoeid aye)
0} Aep Aemy SdA "991A18s 8y} JnoyBnoay) pajeuluassip aq o} Bujules)
ay) Joj Juswabeuew Aq pamalnal aq o} suejd Aemyjed poob jo ajdwes -

sjuswauinbal g7 sy} jo Wed se pauiesy Buiaq

aJe yjejs Jawloj Aue pue uonesiuebio ayj ulof Aay) se uoos se Bululesy
QA19031 SIale)S Mau Jey) os (Alyjuow aoeld saye) pue) ainjny o|qesasio)
ay) 1oy Bulobuo si Buiuies] Buiutesy 389 pue O1d PUshe %001 -

sonoeld Ul pajosjas SEM BI0A S,D|IUD BU) BISUM SISED
40 %08 punoy Jipne oljeway] ‘sbuipiodas pajielep Aq ueld Aemyyed/aied
BU) Ul pajoayjal sI 2J0A S,p|IYD B} Jey} INSUS O} SIABIOM [eI00S IV -

Buiobuo iom - GL0Z 93( I Japaq Jo poob pabpn( %GG e
Bulobuo spom - G0z 1deg Je Jeyaq Jo poob pabpnl %81 ©
panaIyoe - GL0Z YoJel Je 1apaq Jo poob pabpn( 9,9t e
:$9SED Pajipne 10} SBUOISI|I -

SVAN
EBIA 9}BO0APE UB 8AI9081 Ajuslind 8}edoApe ue palinbal oym Oy %001 -

Buiuiel] 3S/071d PUSHE %06 -

10} SBWO2INO POOB BINSUS 0} PaIoAEp B

Juswabebus
dA @1eD Buinea pue Oy panoidwi Jo SOUBPIAT -

sonoeld ul pajos|yel si 9210A S,P|IYd
BU} 9I9YM SBSED JO %08 SO}BLSUOWASP }IPNE dljeway] -

pooB %08 - 9| Yo e

Poob %0 - G| }doS ®

POOB %Ge - G| Yole @
:S9SED Pa)IpNe 10} SUO)SAIN -

:ejep Jobeuew ajelodio) -

%001 99 PINOYS S)e20Ape ue
SAI9031 PUE B)E00APE UE 31INba1 OYM DY/ JO JOquInN -

SI9ABS| 918D PUE DY/

ul, woly pabueyo [T 1Te
EETESHE pajejdwo)

BuiobuQ -
pajojdwon

ul, wody pabueyo [T ek
sey sne)s [ EIC T

S1L0z }des
jsod sabueyn

snjeig

a|doad BunoA yym uone)nsuod ul 9102 9o1A8s Jnoge ajdoad ov1 Joy Buiuueld a1eo Jiayy ul uopedioed
aunr ul a0e|d axe) 0) 9OUBISJUOD SIBABST BJe) 10} Aemiapun Buluueld - SULIOJ 3OBQPS3) J0) B)E] UINJaI %09 - Buno£ o} sja|jes| UoHEWLIOJUI PUE SWLIO) YoBqPaS -| BuloB-uQ | §10Z/%0/10 | JaBeuepy aonieg uosiad BunoX 1o pjiyo jo aduspIAg| p'i
uolINGLIUD S,d A
ay} buipnjoul sueld Aemyjed jo ssauaAdays ay) ‘|dM Jo suolssaibold (o)
ay) ssaippe 0} suoisiriadns QOd “Apubiupoy payoed) buiaq jo ssaooid I
QU Ul S| YoIYm UOISSNOSIP 9SEO dAId3|al Jo) Uoisiriadns dOd %004 -
%28 - €0 mU
%.G - 20 o
%9Y - LO sloc
‘wea) AInr - sweay ||e ssoioe Jaoel) uoisiriadns Juswajdu| - (a N
dA @oueuwlopad uoisiazadng “Jels | Joj aoe|d uj Jexoed) uoisiaedng - ‘wiea) ay} UlyIm aseq [|Iys pling "sIpne yo
zmjoh—\_ﬂ SIDNIONA |BIOOS UBaMIeq ocmr—._no_®>®_u pue mo:om._n sweaj ||e 10} Co_m_?_mn:m aod %001 -
S, L M8U 10} sNd0J 1ea|d pue uoljeleA UOOO mr__E._Nw_ abeinoous pue mo_wom._n BAO9|J9Y - 'sjipne m_no®& mc:0> Jejs jJo uEmEQO_®>MU pue uol AJadns
S9jeljsuowap yoiym Jaxoely Eo_m_EmQ:m paulejuiew pue U@«EmEm_QE_ -l YO r_m:_.ﬁ_.: S9|lj ose? ||e uo mr__v_mrr_ uolsIo8p jsnqol Jes|) - mco_m_?_mnzm jo \r_m>__®_u pue mo_._m__nEOo %001 - mr__omur_o G102/¥0/L0 memEN_\/_ 90INBS _N_._O_wmmwo‘_n JO |9A8] By} mE_>OLQE_ (584
(z) ISAV)
9| uer ui aled ul| sAeeT Jaxiom Jad 1 = swea] aie) ul Ualp|iyD Joj peojased abelany oVl 19340Mm [e100S paylienb Jad sased 9|
10} 9| pue aIeQ Ul UaIpIyD Ul | Je ‘Apes)s sulewal peojased abelony - IUO 9| 0} ] USBM}BQ paulejulew peojased abelany - 219s ejep Apjedp -| BuloB-uo | GL02/¥0/10 | JoBeuepy 9o1AI8S | - | UIYIM Ulewal speojased abelany| gz
NIQ/dD/OV1 Ssoioe ualpiyo Buissiw |je 1o} dnois) ysiul4 pue yse] -
G10Z 99 Jo pus je ssaooid
Bujuueld [ebs| ayy ybnoiyy panoidde ussq aaey uaip|iyd Buissiw | |V [IV -
Jabeue|y 901M18S 8y} Aq siseq Ajpyjoem e
UO PasSasse sl pue pamalnal Bulaq aie a1ed woly Buissiw ualp|iyo |y -
Jayuenb
1se| 8y} wouy Juswanoidwi Ue ‘GLOZ 190 e %L 6 “eouewsopad anroidwi
0} 8oe|d Ul Suoljoe pue pappaqui Mou sjuswabuelle Juswabeuew Mmap -
8[eosauy AIoJnjess UIym paysiA Oy -
paulejulew oljel Aouabe 0} yejs yusuewad %08 -
pue paAsIyde Usaq Sey SPeojase) padueleg Oy UoNEIO|. %001 -
Buissiw Oy ||e jo Jybisiano Juswabeuew AyaspA -
SdA 10} gL
pue swea) O[O 10} 1 SI Yolym abeIoAR SIIAISS SY) UIU)IM SIE SPEO[eSE) - SId) %oed) 0} G> 91ed wouj Buissiw UaJp|Iyod JO SJaquinu moT -
pajuswsa|dwi sbunssw juswabeuew sousuewlad Jeinbay -
sased Oy Alonje}s Jo uonedo|e %00} - 'so|easawl} AI0Injels ulyim paysIA D140 %001 -
‘S9IOUBDEA ||l 0} SJaXIom Aouaby -
OV ulisod ul yejs Jusuewnad %0/ - speojaseo
SdA ul1sod ul yjes yusuewlad %66 - "SI9I0M [BIDOS [[B UJIM JUSLUNNIODI JUSUBWISd - paouejeg QY Uoieso||e %001 - 19s ejep Ayaap -
‘Jow a.e syuswalinbas
S92IAI9S Y)oq ssouoe pajulodde siebeuew g// "sjoesuod ‘pajuiodde| ‘g0z 1des Aq (swes} DI o} 1) abesane aolAIas By} wea| s,dA 8 OV 2OV Aloymes |le jey) ainsua
Jusuewuad uo s1abeuew Jiay) Jo Ajuolew ay) aAeY sWea) SJA PUe DD -|siebeuely Wea | ||e yym [NjSSa00Nns JUSW)INIO) JUSUBULISG -|  UIYIM Sle Speojaseo pue pajlly aJe sisod Aiojnjels |y -| BuloB-uQ | 5L02/0/10 | JeBeuepy aoinieg 0} pajeso|je aq ||IM SasED OV IIV| L't
suoljoy - ssaiboid sjobie] Aoy S9UO}SI|I PUB SOINSEI|\ 9OUBWIONAd ajeq pu3 | sjeq Heis pea uonoy 3y

Z Xipuaddy

ajdoad Buno) 3 9y 10} sawodino Buiroidwy 1 wealys YoM



"9)o|dWOD SI UONOE SIY] "PaPUIOaI g 0} HET Ul SBSED Jay)jo ON

‘panssi aq 0} ||s Sased ¢ "sBulpasooid ul Apualind saseo g ‘papnjouod
U9 SABY SOSED Z "Pa)OARI 9] O} SIaPIO JUBWade(d JOj UNOD 0} pauIN}al
u9aq dABY SBSED Z| "Nd JB POMBIASI UDaq ARy SBSED ||y "ojeudosdde
2J9Ym UNOY 0} pauln}al Buldq pUe PamaIAS] SBSED JapIQ JUBWAJEI IV - ue|d Aousuewad

e sey Jeak e Jano %001 ‘9102 yore >D (0 uonoeg |Iv -

SOSEO SMAIABI JB[NBAI NS "SUONOE JEajo JYIM PAMBIASI ‘S|NdT 0} J0algns siaydope aAoadsoid ypm paoeld Jo payojew usaq aney
uaaq aAey sased (gs ||y "eoe|d ul mou sueyd wis) Buo| ajeudoidde ue|d uondope ue ypum uaipjiyd ||y "Sawooino jusuewad %01> = 91D Ojul A1Jus Jo syjuow
pue pamainal SaSED a1ed (g UoI0ag) Alejunjon wisy Buoy |y - ajowo.d 0} Sased wia) Buo| e Jo U EUapUN MBIASY - 2\ Buipuy Ajiwey Joy Buniem uaipjiyd jo abejuadiad -
%0€> = 2Ie9 OJul A1JUS JO SyuOW
sBuneaw Buuojuopy Aoueuswiad ul paiajuow oVl 6 Buipuy Ajiwey 1oj Buiem uaip|iyo jo abejussied -
os|e ale sue|d Aoeuawlad ay] ‘Aoueuswiad loj passaiboid Buieq g} Buo |je 1o} sawooino Jusuewlad Ajawiy spiroid o - ovl
VT Elou S| 9seD B JI O] JO) NS 0} Juas s|iews ||y “ssaifoud ul si uonejesss siy) ‘SHOOM ! ovl 1o} uoisinoud yuswaoeld yusuewsad
LEIEILITERY ‘uejd Aousuewlad e JNoyym saseo aje[edss o) paaibe sey aoIAeS OY] - sBunesw A|YJuow-PNoo Ul PaASIYOE SHIIM 9T - 92 = PapN|oU0D 8q 0} S8sed O1d Jo abeiane ay| -| 91.0z/€0/LE | SL0Z/¥0/1L0 | 19Beuey 9o1neS | Jo ssauljawl pue Buuoyuow aroidw)| 8¢

paje|dwod sd3d %001 - §L0Z 29Q @

paje|dwod sd3d %08 - §10Z 1deS &

paje|dwod sd3d %LS - GL0Z UdIel @

2Je ale yolym

Sd3d Jo uona|dwod ay} Jojuow 0} pasn ejep aouewopad ApEap -

|ooyos [en sBuiesw Jeinboay -

pue wea} peaN u| uaJ|

*OV1 ebeinosus 0}

SOAUSOUI pue ADBJa)| aSE8IOU] 0} JSNI| }00g ‘UoNIN} |1}, BuILOISSIWWOD
UO Pasn Uaaq SABY SWOS ‘GLOZ YDJEIN Ul [00YIS 0} PaAIOASp Buleq ddd

G10Z-710Z "pajuswsa|dwi Jou $a21n0sal ddd }8b.e) o} uonelado jo |apojn

:Ue|d Juswanoidw| PajsjO WOl) SUONHO. [ENPISAY - pa1a|dwod %00} - G 990

paje|duwod %G/ - G| JdaS e

'GL0Z Mdy YigL Aq LTHVINS pa1e|dWiod %06 - G| UdIEN @

9q ued paaibe sue|d UOHOY Jey) 0S JId4d 0} apew ag 0} SjuSIPUBY (d3d) ueid
‘Ue|d Juswanoidw| pajsjO Wouj SUOHO. [ENPISAY - UONEONPT [BUOSIS B JO UONB|WOD BY) IO} SUO)SIYIA - =,
‘5102 ‘uoissaiboid ainsua 0} ‘d3d <

Judy Joy jos uona|dwiod Joj ajeq ‘SO PUB SOSA ‘S1d ‘SMS O} 9]qISsaooe ay} ybnouyy aoe|d Ut uejd a8 UE SABY SBUOISI|IWL
wa)sAs auo UIYIM paulejuod si elep ssaiboid pue Juswulele ||e jey) os J1ay) Bunaaw Jou pue Dy 84 OYM UBIPJIYD [|e ainsus - Q
GO 34 uiypm wajsAs Buuoyuow pue Bupioesy dojoasp 0} apew uolsioaq ‘abe Jo sieak g| 0} dn ‘pjo sieak jooyos OV 40} S8W09)no poob ajelisuowsp O
pajejdwon :UB|d Juawanoidw| PajsjO Wolj SUOHO. [ENPISAY - € Jo sabe ay) usamjaq Oy |le 1o} 9oeld Ul Sdad %001 [sBunesw souewlopad Ayeam pue eyeq woj sayepdn - 5L0Z/ZL/L0| SL0Z/LO/LO | [enMIA JO peay sindjno Juswaoe|d uoneonp3 | 2 (T
1eIS ||e Aq pepusne [AN]

pue ¢ JapeNnD ul pesH [eniiA sy} Aq paIoAljop a1om SAOUSHIOM -

%S"06 SEM 910Z Uer e
%G9 Sem G0z bny e
%SE SEM GLOZ AInr @
'} SJUBWISSASSE Yj|eay [eljiul JO Jaquunu a8y -

Kioyepuew s| souepuape

sey snjejs ‘g ‘SJusLISSaSSE Y)|eay JoJILOW pUe >oel) 0 sjeuoissajold UjeaH
pajeubisap yym spom oy aoeyd ul sbuesw Bupiojiuow Apjeam g Jeinbay -
(z yuiod swea) H/A pue |ejuaw 1o} SAOYSHIOAN -
99s) ainseaw MB3IABI JO Suoljedlou slauped y)eaH yum sbunesw souewlopad Apjaam-9
souew.opad VT Te punoJe sjuswainseaw dojaaap o} yleaH ynm Ajasojo Buisiiom ale 'sInoy $Z ulyim puodsal pue s,\S 0} 9)e[eosa ‘ajeasaul} ov1 OV 40} S8Wo2No poob
JUEINMA pajajdwod wea) 8y "9|eosal} UlyIm pa3a|dwod SjusWSSasSe Uyeay OV %06 - UIY}IM SJuBWISSaSSE Yjeay QY Jo uona|dwod %06 -| ‘sbunesw aouewlopad Apj@am pue eyeq woly sayepdn| 510z/21/10| $1.02/10/10 | Jobeuepy aoiniag [ejensuowsap sindino Juswaoeld yyeaH| 94

Bulobuo spom - G0z 99Q e 18eq 10 poob pabpn( 9,66 e
Bulobuo spom - G0z 1das Je Jeyjaq Jo poob pabpnl %81 ©
PaABIYoE - GLOZ UdIe Je Jejaq Jo poob pabpnl %9t e
:$9SED JO JIpNE %00} -

Kemiapun Lioyod AIBJUN|OA O UONOSS S} JO MaIASI |4 - 181384 40 poob %08 - 91 YdIe e
19)19q 10 POOb %G - G| }d9S ®
(g' 0} 48)04) Aemuspun pue payoel) uoisiniedng - Jayaq 1o poob %GE - G| YoIep e
:$9SED Pa}ipNe 10} SBUOISIIA -
9102 Uer Jo pus JO Se (SaseD JuaLng)
SH99M GZ anoqe sl s| sased O1d abesany ‘sbuijesw Od Jeinbey - S9SED JO JIpNE %001 - 9[BOSAWI UIYIIM Pa)aldwiod SMaIASI DY JO %001 -
pajuswa|dwi Bunsasw Bunjoes) Aousuewsad Ajyuop - S9[EOSAWI UIYIM SMBIABI DV %00} - S
92 = PapN|ouU0d aq 0} Sased O1d JO abeuane ay] -
Japio [euly 0} uonesldde woyy uononpal e ul Buninsas SH99M 9Z S| sased Od abeleny -
pajuswajdwi A|Injsseoons uaaq sey (O1d) BUINO MeT 21iand 8y - ISMIASI QY] PUB SBWIODJNO WUNOY -
s1abeuew wes) Jusuewlad Jo JusWNIOSY -
spomawely Bunipne aseo ay) ypm soueldwoo |ind - 1u1j0 Juswabeuew souewlopad Apybiupioy uswadw - Bujew-uoisioap
u, wouy pabueyo [T UBIp|IYo D7 10} SEWO9IN0 ov1 |]awn aiow pue Jayaq o} buipes| aoed

FEVERTENY pajejdwod 510z 1das ul pajuswajdwi a1nons Jebeuepy 9o10eld MON -|  PooB sjelsuowap 0} Jsnqos ale sueld aIed ||e 8Insus o - Joxoel} uoisiniadns |-z-| - 9L02/€0/LE | §1L0Z/¥0/10 | JoBeuepy ao1aies | Ul S IyBIsIano Juswabeuew aAday3| St

ammmomuu«%:wmw: & snjejs suonoy - ssaiboig syobue) Aoy S9UOJSIIJ\ PUB SIINSESJN IUBWIOHDY ajeq pu3 | ajeq Mels pea uonay 194

N x_ UCOQQ( ajdoad BunoA @ 9y 404 sawooyno Buiroidwy :f wWeals YoM

~




~

%0 %81 %28 abejusoiad
0 4 6 JaquinN
lejoL ELECR sse6o:d ul [IFEETETERIN 91/5102 405 SNOLLOV 40 SNLVLS
G102 190 wouj pajuiodde Jobeuely 991A18S SAA JusUBWIRd -
610z 1das woly isod ui Jebeueyy Wea] jusuewad -
910z Aues aoe(d axe) 0} SjusWSsasse
sybu uewny pue sjuswissasse abe uo Bulules / JuswdojeAap Jels -
*a|qe-juiodde a1am om} pue aoe|d ¥00) SMaIAIB}UI JauOlOeId
paoueApY 'speojased a|qeabeuetu yym aoiopiom Jusuewad Ajing -
Mau S|
1ebie] Aoy pig 2 aleosauul} ulyIm pa}a|dwod % /6 - 9| Uer e
9[e0SaWI UIYIM PaJa|dod %G6 - GLOZ 1doS e
“A|Buipioooe ;Juswissasse Jad sAep Qg jo abesane uoledo|[e 1oy ssaooid Jesjo e dojpre( - Al
pabueyd usasq UB Ypm Xew SAep G UIUIM PAIBAI[OP SJUSISSISSE ‘WnjAse Qv - <H
sey Jaoljo peaT pajeoojje wnjAse Qv %001 - Juswabeuew aseo Buiobuo
*Z WEa)S IOM; UONEDO|E %00} 9ABY UBIP|IYD WN|ASe 1|V - 2Insua 0} Apjeam pjay sbuneaw JoJedIpu| S0UBWLIOHS - Q
woJy pajuayul wslous ] O
uaaq sey yoiym VLo SdA 8Uu} ul pappaquia| /Buniouyes) /3SD /INOH 0} 8|gelaulnA dA/uaipjiyo pJenbajes juswissasse Jad sAep (¢ Jo abelone ue ypm; ajdoad Buno (11V) wea] axeju| wnjAsy ay) yum [
uonoe maN - | [ E] %) Aliny st 11 8y "930|dwiod mou sI S4A @y} Jo uonejuswaldwi ay] - 0} suonjesado yym diysisupied ul 3uom o} || pue 4gMN -| Xew sAep G UIylim sjuswissasse Jo %001 Buuaaleg -| Buiob-ug | 510z/€0/10 | 19beuely ao1n18S (diysuonelal Buisiom aAndays ysliqes3 Ly
9102 YoIey Aq panjosal aq [|Im Jajew 8y | "pJeMIO)
Buiob suonnjos puly o) Wea} aousbijjaju] ’p SOUBWIONS Ay} Yim sbuneaw
pey sey Jabeuejy 801AI18S 8| 090}01d UO SSINDIIP UONOS||00 Bjep
0} anp pasues|o Bulaq jo ssaco.d ayy ui st suejd sAemyyed oy ejep ay]
sey sjep pu3 'z
ueld Aemyjed e aABY SI9ABS| 1D %G8 = GL0Z YOIB -
papuswe usaq slanes| aied 9|qiblje ||y = sue|d Aemuyyed 9,001 -
sey pajedo||e saseo uado snid g|, ||B UO UONEIO||E %00 S dJaY]L - 201nI9g 9|doad Pa}eo0||E JOSIAPY [BUOSIDd
JOSIAPY |euosiad saseo uado snid g} ||e = UOIEIO|E %001 - Buno, *® uaipiyy B 9ABY [[IM SIOABS| 81D 8 JOAQ
RN BuiobuQ - ue|d Aemuyied SAN0SYS UE aABY SIaARS| a1ed 9|qibie ||y "plo sieak Jabeue| % DV | "Jo3IOM pajedo)ie ue aAey 0} p|o Sieak
‘pajepdn uonoy ‘| [LSEILITELY 9| Jo abe ay) JoA0 JA DV |[E 0} PSJEJO||B USS] SARY JOSIAPY [BUOSISd - -a1ed Buines| ajdoad BunoA o) sewodjno sy arosdwi o :Buuoyuopy eleq Apeapn| 9102/€0/LE | SLOZ/Y0/L0 | Jobeuepy ao1n1es 91 Jo abe sy} Jono ualp|iyd V1 1IV| OL'¥
dnoub Bupyiom uonedidiied ayy Aq
papoddns Buiaq si yoiym ‘seousiadxa yiom pue sdiysaoiuaidde punole
Jabeue|y Bunualed dio) yum Bupiom ate SdA "senssi | JIN oY) uo
Jno Buiddays, /1ebeuely Buijuaied aye1odio) yim 31om 0} SA dY} Ulyim
uoidwey) “epuabe dnoib Buiop) S1oAes] aie sy} uo sulewas 133N -
-2o130e.4d dA0Jdwi 0) UOISSAS JMSUB pPUE suoljsanb
e apinoid 0} pue Bujuiesy ueld Aemyyed ayepspun o} payooq dnoib
s,91doad BunoA ,1no Buidde)g, ‘910z |udy ul paxooq Aeq Aemy SdA -
9102 9o Jo pus Aq ejep ay) apiroid 0) Wes) |'Rd "SISAES| 31eD Jo}
sueld Aemyjed Buipsebai ejep jo Ayjjenb ayy arosdwi 0y Aemiapun s HIOA\
‘SdA pue wes} souewlopad usamiaq aoe|d Buiye) sbunesw Apeap) -
UOEPOWIWO29. JO AJljIqeurelsns ay) 399y 0} pJeog
Bunuaied dio) o) Jabeue|y 921AI8S BY) WO 3oBAPa3) Jeinbai sl alay] -
pseog bunualed dio) ayj jo dnoub Bupjiopy a1e) Buinea ayy Aq smainal
pappe Je|nbBas Aq uaxeuspun aoioe.d pue souewuouad ] 33N jo Buuojuop -
uaaq sey yoiym
‘sue|d Aemyyed 'dIS SJeak jxau 1o} suonoe wliojul aoe|d u; suejd Aemyyed 2,08 -
Buiuieouod yolym suonepuswwodal paroidde pieog Bunuaied diod ‘91,02
10bue) Aoy uer pseog Bunuaied dio) o) pajussaid pue paje|dwoo podal Jayuny pleog Bunua.ed ejeiodio) ay jo dnoib ale) ul 99 Jo} oVl
mau e sl alay] [ssaiboud uj| “sebeueyy a01A18S/INL A AJyJUOW I SUOHEPWOWOIJE PaJBYS JO MIINDY- -gns sieAea aJe) ay) Je paaibe Buiaq aue sjebie) Ay -| sueld skemyjed pue uonepowwodoe ‘] 33N Bulojuon | 910z/€0/L€ | §102/20/10 | Jobeuepy aoinieg | aieD Ul @ABaT J0j sawodino Buinoidwi| 6
ammn—momuwumﬂmmw.._ 5 snjejg suoay - ssaibouig sjabie] Aoy S9UO}SII\ PUB SAINSEI|\ SDUBWIOMIY ajeq pu3 | ajeq Mels pea uonay JEY|

Z Xipuaddy

ajdoad Buno) 1 9y 10} sawooino Buirosdw) 1y weals YIopm




u|, wouy pabueyo I
sey snjeys L T

palnas usag mou I
sey uonoe siy | ST M)

paJas usag mou [IEITTEN
sey uonoe siy | LI 5

painey -
pajojdwo)

§10Z ydes

3sod sebueyn smels

Pa]09]|02 S| 9OUSPIAS PUE PayDE.). Ajawiy pauljweals ssaooud Bupiew uoisioap NAY -
‘paaibe ale suois|oap pue sajnuIp "UoNe|eoss pue Buiules) jo
9[040 aU} ul pappaga dWodaq [dued dY} WOl PAAISOSI OBAPSD - pajuswa|dwi
Joued o) 6ulob o} Joud suodal S 10} 198YsS YOBqPaS) YD -
%0BqPa9) puE Bululel) BIA PaISAIOp 8] [[IM Sioquiaw
Joued yym Buisuom diysisuped ul Juswaaoidw |nyssaoong - padojansp swwelboid Buiuiely 89l
9102 Buuds ul pasaniep sbunesw
aq |I!M pue ssaiboud ul s swwesboud Bujulel) 821AI8S S,uaIp|Iy) - weaj} 0} palaAllap suonejoadxa pue sjuswalinbal jsued -
AloAnoaye pabieyosip Buieq st uonouny NQY - 90IAI9S BY) PUE Slaquiaw
siouped ul sjuswanoidu [nyssedoNg -
‘uoisinoid siyy
JO SSBUBAIDAYS 8U) dINSUd 0} JaBeUB 921AI8S MaU AQ ussepapun padojenap
malaa1 BuloBuQ "eoe|d ul oddns uiwpe pajesipap Jo uoisinoid -|  spodal Aapenb [aued wiuoyul 0} seseo [aued jo Bunjoel] -
2oe|d Ul mou $399Ud YO Joued Jo syeem
10} $S9901d "WiLdUI paoualadxs ue Aq pa1anod jsod JOSIAPY [dUed -[ Z ulyim AV Aq paubis pue pajajdwod aie sajnuiw [aued -
Joued 8y} woyj suoisioap Ajowi Juswajdw -
uone|nbey pue SN uondopy pue Bulg)so - GL0zZ/01/02 sioquiaw [aued y)m uonesIuNWWod aAocidul
Buls)soy wis) Buoj uo uonelsiba] maN - GL0Z/S0/9L| Ppue somiaded ajenaud 0) pajuswaldwi Wa)sAs o1uos|g - |loued yoes Jaye |aued
121 joogawoiy) ‘uonosold eleq - G1.0z/€0/60 Buuslso pue uondopy Aq paje|dwos swioy yoeqpasd - 10SIApY [duBed B
ONINIVYL TINVd NOILJOAY 8 ONIYI LSO | Pauljwesss pue pajeulpiood Buiuonouny pue sseooud joued - $80In0sey [oued uondopy
Joued Bunsso pue uondopy o} pajuasaid yiomiaded s,uaJpiyy ® Buns)so4 ay) Jo uone
:SMOJ|0} SB G0z Ul siaquisw [aued o) paaljap suolssas Bujuiel) - pauanlep A|inysseoons Builuiel jpued - pue saseo ||e 1o} 99e|d Ul soueInssy Ayend -|  GLo9Q G102/€0/G1 | 1obeuepy 9o1AIeS pue Juswabeuew ay) snoidw|| $'G
siseq Apjaam e uo
dnoub-qns souewiouad AqQ payoel) ale SI0)edIpu| SduUBWIONad AdY -
syuswaoe|d jusuewsad
Jo1ybisiano pue Juswabeuew souew.opad paroidw apiroid oy
Bunesw Jaxoel) sousuewlad Ajpeam jo uonejusws|dwi ‘siseq Apeam apew bBulaq uoisioap Aousuewlad wisy
e uo dnoibgns souewlopad auyj Aq ejep jo Aunnidos panuiuo) -| buoj 0} Oy Buleq pjiyo auy wouy sAkep abeiane ul uolonpay -
sJaJe2 Jo |erosdde oy sejeasau) o) o) papiaoid ejep ssnosip| sonoeld ul pappaquie sbuijesw ejep souewlopad Ajyuo - uopbBuliH
0} A|yjuow }98W 0} SNUUOD Wes| 82usbl||9ju| SoUBWIONSH/SD| - gLoz Ainp ul Oy 4o} sawoono Aousuewad Al
pajuswsa|dwi ajnpow uondope g9 -| Aq dnoiBgns souewiopad Aq ejep Ajyjuow jo Aunniog - $901n0saYy panoidwi Jo souspiAs pue Jybisiano <H
pJeoaloos uondope jsuiebe s,uaipjiyn juswabeuew Buosns Bunuswsa|dwi Aq
ojul Juswabeuew Jenbas apinoid o) peaibe usaq sey jas ejeq - poaibe 195 eleQ - (g'G uonoe 0} J9)1) GLOZ dunp: Aq paaiBe 19sered -| 910z/c0/91 | §1L0Z/20/5) | 19Beue somieg | uswabeuew souewiopad ancidw|| ¢
aoe|d Bunje) aie smainal Jejnbas pue
uayepapun Buiag si saji OZ JOAC SJapIo Juswade|d || JO MaIASI Y - Dnld
spaau o10ads S,pjIYd SY) }9SW pue [sUBd SIIN0SSY
0} S$$900Y 8y} Aq pamainal 81e Hg Jo apIsino syuswaoeld ||y -
ue|d UoNOY SIY} BIA PaIOJIUOW 8] [[IM;
suoljoe dn mo||oj pue uozLoH uo aAl| ob |im ABajens ayl ‘GLoz Ainp
| pJeog Bunuaied dio) ayj pue wea] Juswabeuey Joluas Aq Jo
paubis sem Abajenig Aousiong ay] oAl mou si pue paroidde usaq
SBY ‘92IAI9S 3} Yim paleys usaq sey ABajes Aousioyng ayy -
901A19S 8U) Ul SBOPIOE(] }I0MaSED BANUEBISANS
ou aJe aJay "0} payinIoal Bulaq Jo PaISA0D JaU)Ie SJe SIIOUBDBA - sawoo)no Aousuew.ad
J0 Wbis1ano pue abus|ieyd }snqou sepiroid pue sonoeid
910z uer wouyjsod ul pue pajuiodde Jebeuepy 991AI8S JusuewLIdd -| Ul pappaquia Buneayy Buuojuop Aousuewsad Apybiupod -
910z Asenuer Aq 1sod ul yeis S9OINISS S,UaIpIIYD|  Sluswssasse ||e uo 9o1oeld yiom [e100s Ajjenb poob
‘G102 19quaAoN Inoybnoly) s1asIoAA [B100S Jusuewad Buninioay - SS0JOB JUSW}INIOS. YI0M [B100S Joj ued yim ul yul - JO 9oUapIAG sapIA0Ld Yiomawely soueInssy Ajlend -
18pow Qv
JobBeuey wea] e Aq paianod aq o} wes) Alang 1s0d JueoeA Jan0o 0} pasn yejs Aousby -| 510z 190 Ag Aemiapun yejs Jusueuwad Jo JuaW)IinIOaY - 2y} Joj 90IAI9S Juswade|d ,anjeA 1sad,
*(51.0z 1dag ui) Aousby Bulieisod juspuadapu] 8y} pue souel||y| e Juswaldwi pue ao1A1es uondopy
UOPUOT ISOAN BY} ‘UOIBIDOSSY JaJBD IS)SO- BY) JaLIq |[IM M pasijeul) sjuawyujodde G102 AIne Aq pajuswajdw pue pieog pue Buus)so ayy uiyym syuiod Ay
uaaq sey Aemyyed ayy 9ouQ "sbuyaLq yels seinbai je passnosip |Inyss900NSs 931y} - S1ebeuew wes) Jo Jusw}inIOaY -| Bunuaied ajesodio) ye yo paubis ABajens Aou: ng - 1e puewsap Joj ueld o} ‘Josfoud | |
aq [|IM PUB 90IAI9S B} UIy)M SIoBeuB|\ Wea] Yym paleys aq [m )| $90In0SaY ay) woly pajoadxe sjuswaroidwi
*G1L0Z AIne w1 Bunesy siebeuely Juelsissy Je pajuasaid sem Aemyjed Jopea JJe)s pue siapjoyae)s Asy 0} s,ualpiyy |y} UleUIBW PUB JOAIIOP
9oIAI9s 8y ‘910z Aseniga4 Aq pajuswa|dwi 81njonu)s adIAJeS |Ind - pue ] INS 0} pajussaid pue pajojdwod ased ssauisng -| pajeslunwiwod ainjonis Buiels pue Aemyjed ao1A19S -| 9102/€0/1L0 | §102/20/SL | 1ebeuely aoinieg 0} aInjonJis 9oIAI8s mau juswsdwi| z'g
uoisiaold 801AI8S JO sisA|eue pue dnoibgns pad Aq ejep Ajyiuow jo Aupniog -
ejep aplaoid 0} S|ge a9 [|IM pue 3Al| S| 3jnpow S| uondopy -
Buns)soy pue sjuswaJinbau A1ojnje}s yym aul Ul s1aed Jo [eaosdde
uondope Joj swaysAs juswabeuew souewlopad Jeinbal jusws|dw - ajoJ sJobeuew | oy ejep Alyjuow wes | aouabljleju| souewIONad/SI] -
ul pappaquwa a.e sbunjesw souew.opad ejep AlyJuop -
Jopow a21nu8s adAjojoud 0} Hoyood Buyyeys JOH Jusws|dw - sauljapIinb Alojnje)s yum aul| ul |sued Buus)iso4
Remyjed s,uaip|iy ay} ol pajesodiooul pue uondopy 0} pajuasald aIe SJUSWISSISSE MO -
G102 Buraq [apow 9o1A19s pue pajuawalduwi adAjojold TOH - 901MI9s 8y ojul Buiwoo
190 Aq paje|dwod pue pajedojle sjuswssasse Bulpuelsino 67 |1 - 1090id Welto) syuow $90In0SaY SjuaWssasse mau pue Buipuejsino
pajedo||e sased 9 uyym |eaoidde Joy jsued Buls)so pue uondopy s,uaipiiyd || Jo uona|dwod pue uopneso|e
TJOH pue wel1o) ypum ao1ales pabeuew e juswsdwy - |Jo %00} payuswa|dwi Ajjnjssaoons aoiales pabeuew welio) - 0} pajuasald syuswssasse Buipuelsino Jo %001 -| S10z/20/SL | S10Z/L0/SL | Jobeuepy aoinles INSUD 0} [9pOW 92IAISS MaU JOjid| |L'G
suonay - ssaiboid sjabue) Ay S9UO}SI|IIN PUB S3INSE3|\ 992UBWLIOMAd ajeq pu3 | sjeq Mels pes uonay 19y

Z Xipuaddy

uoisinoid uondopy @ Bulisyso jo Ayjenb ayj Buinoidwy :g weasys YI0M



%Ll

%€E8

ssalboud uj

pajejdwon

abejusoiad
JaquinN
91/S102 10} SNOILOV 40 SNLVLS

pappe
(s101e2 19)S0},
0€ J0 JuswyInIdal)

106.e) Aoy maN [ssaiboud uj

910z 1das Jo pua g abelS ‘94,0z Yo Jo pud paja|duiod aq

~

paJojuow
aq 0} anunuod
m pue BuiobuQ

wouy pabueyo T

§10Z ydes

3sod sebueyn smels

0} | obe)s "/ 1/910z Buunp s18.eD 18)S0} OF JO JUBWIHNIODY - Hg Jo sajiw g Jo apisino paoeld o)
spaau s,p|Iyo 8y} 198w syuswaoeld jey, leidoad BunoA pue uaip|iyd Jo Jequinu 8y} Ul UONONPaY © <t
AJlIaA 0) pamalnal Usaq 9ABY S3|IW OZ JO SPISINO sjuswadeld ||y - s)sod JuedeA IS0 0} pasn Jjels Aouaby - syuswaoe|d [enuapisal
ul paoe|d UaJpjIyo JO JSGINU S} Ul UORONPY e a
*aluso Buiddoys ayy ur moys sjuswjulodde :sjuswaoeld Buusysoy wius) Buoj ur paoeld ualp|iyo O
peou e pue ybnoioq ayj ui pjoyasnoy A1ans 0} sdoip jajes) Jayuny IN}sS200NS 9a.y) - SJebeuBw Wes) JO JUSW)INIOSY - 10} SUMOPXEaIq JuaWade|d JO JaqINU 8y} 9oNPay - [
‘sdoys snq uo siaysod ‘}diaoal ||1ysdoys ul BuisiaApe Jo }sisuod Dl
JIm pue Aleniga4 ul Jess [|im BuisieApe Jo youel) puodas ay] - JapeaT] pue J NS O}| ainjon.s mau sy} yim aul| ul syuswaoe|d Bulisisoy wis)
pajuasald pue paje|dwod ainjonys Mau 1o} aseo ssauisng -| Buoj ul paoeld ua.p|iyo Joy Ajljigels Juswsaoe|d anoidwy -
*dn pamojjoy Buieq aie 9
19U)0 8y} pue JISIA swoy [el 1o} Ul payjooq Apeale ale | papusje paje|dwod A 10} asiolaxa Bulan-ay - (%SG) @snoy-ul 0} (%St) S,V JO ones sonpay -
a|doad g} Asenuep ul aoe|d 300} BulUSAS UOHEWIOUI JOUUNY / -
aonoeld ul pappaqwa Bunea)y Bulojuopy Aousuewlad - sjuswaoe|d Ja}so} asnoy-ul Q| |, -
‘passasse Buleq mou siaueo Ja)so) aandadsoid $90In0SaY OV Jo sabuajieyo
2 Apuaiind si 218y} pue youeJ) Jsilj 8y} papnjouod A|inyssadons pieog Spaau xa|dwod Yim asoy) pue Dy s,ualpiyy PUE SPasU 9SISAIP dY) 193
sey ubledwes jusw)inioal sialed 19)so} Hg1 ,0€ dlsejued, ay] - Bunuaied ajesodio) o) pajussald ABajens Aousioyng - 19p|0 10} SI9IED 19)SO0J JO UONUS}aI PUB JuBWINIOSY -[ 91.02/€0/LE | $102/60/10 | Jobeuepy aoinieg | 0} siaied 1)so) Hg Jo Juswdojersg| 9'g
Juswaoeld e Buiieme ue|d aAndope UB Y)im USJp|Iyd ou ale aiay] -
"aUI|PESP YIUOW Z] 8y} UIYNM paydjew ale A3y} 21nsua 0} paIojuow
aq 0} BuiNuNUOD aJe G0z dunf woJj saseo pue Aousuewiad
Buinaiyoe Jo ueid eajo e aAeY pue WNC aUi Aq paiapisuod
uaa( ||E 9ABY SISED OLO)SIH ‘Spew Buleq Joplo a1ed ay) Jo syjuow
21 ulynm syuswaoeld Buneysoy wius) Buoj ul pade|d ale uaip(iyd yoiym dnoubgns aouewiopad Aq ejep Ajyyuow jo Aunniog -
ur awi 8y} Buiroidwi uo Buisnooy mou si Buesw Aousuewlad ay] -
uswaoe|d Bulsysoy wis) Buo| ue o} yoyew e uo Buiposp
Jspio pue aoe(d 0} UNod e Bulnlgoal usamiaq awi) abeiany e
Juswaoe|d jo Jeak auo ulypm paoeid G - pade|d uaip(iyo G| S1/710Z Ajiwey anndope ue o} yoyew e uo Buipiosp
‘pajuelb Buiaq Japio Juswede|d ay) Jo Jeak auo im Ajiwey pue aoe|d 0} NS B BuiAledal usamiaq awr abelany e
aAndope ue yym pageld Bureq uaip|iyo JO Jaquinu sy} ul asealou] - diysueipiens
|e108dg asnedaq Oy 89 0} PASESD OYM UIP|IYD JO % @
"Jybisiano Jebeuew Joluas Buipiroid a10je18U) MBIABI DY PUZ Y} wey aandope yim ui buirow pue aied oyul Buusjue
woy bunesyy Bunoyuop Aousuewiad ay) 0} pajussaid ale Qv IV - u2aM}aq SYUOW G| UBY) SS3] JIEM OYM UIP|IY JO % @
Awey anndope sy ypm,
“Jup ay) Buonpai Apeaub aiojeiay) ul Buinow pue a1ed Bulisjua plIyd usamiaq abelany e
Buueay jeuy ay} 03 Joud ualp|iyo Jo} saljiwey sAidope |enusjod apew Buiaq Japlo Juswaoe|d ay} jo Jeak paydope
Bunosjes e Asjanoeoid Buniiom ale wes) Buipuly Ajiwey sy - 1 ulynm Juswaoeld Jeysoy wia) Buoj yum padeid aie Dy -|  Si9m Oym Jae Oy 9q O} 9SESD OYM USIPJIYD JO % e
:S10)e2Ipul 821AI8S ASY JO MaIAS) douewIopad Jeinbay -
‘sjuawaoe|d aAndope Joj pajoajes 10 PaydleW Jay)e usaq aAey pJeoa.09s uondope [euoneu
G102 Aenuer 0} Joud sI9pIQ JUBWSE|J 0} 303[qNS UBIPIIYD ||V - ay) Aq painsesw se aouewiopad sy} ul juswaAoidw| - G102 1290100 Aq pajnioai Ajnj wea] -
$90In0SaY
*saljlwe) aAndope Yym saydjew 1oy pajos|as Jo padeld Jayye usaq uopbBuliH ue|d 991AI8S TOH PUe WeIo) 99s ‘GL0Z s,ualpiyy 90IAI3S aY) ulyym Buipuy Ajwey
ajep pug "| [EEIEITELY mou aABY USIP|IYO PUE UJIM }[ESP USSG MOU dABY SaseD Bojyoeq ||y - ul Q7 4o} sawojno Juswaoe|d Jusuewlad paroidw| -|  Anp Ag pajenjens pue pajsjdwiod ao1aies adAlojoid -| 9102/€0/LE | SL0Z/E0/SL | 1oBeuep aon1eg | Jo sseooud pue uonouny ayy anoudwi| G'G
suonay - ssaiboid sjabue) Ay S9UO}SI|IIN PUB S3INSE3|\ 992UBWLIOMAd ajeq pu3 | sjeq Mels pes uonay 19y

Z Xipuaddy

uoisinoid uondopy @ Bulisyso jo Ajjenb ayj Buinoidwy :g weasls YIop




%0

%Ll

%E8

lejoL

ohels

ssaiboud u|

pajajdwon

abejuaoiad
JaquinN
91/5102Z 103 SNOILOV 40 SNLVLS

slesow Jejs ul abueyd aanisod e
pajesisuowap SUINPNO Jjels SJAD ‘Hels ||e woly uonedidiped Buimojjod -
Buipsenbajeg
uoljoe yuswanoidwi pue sabueyd |iejap ul uejdxa o} s,uaip|iyd
BOIAIBS JIBY} Ul Jels ||e ypm sBuiesw Jeinbai pjoy siabeuepy adinIss ||y - sbunesw juswabeuepy av® slafeuew pue
90IAI8S JE JjB)S JO souepusje Jeinbey - alen 1JBIS YiM uolesjuNWWoD Jejnbas ybnoayy
BuiobuQ - 901AI8s 8y uyym Buluueld pue sabueyd Aay |e1o0g s,ualpliy) a.led pue uofje)nsuod ‘Aousledsuely
EELITELGY  auipno o) pjay S)USAS UONEDIUNWWOD SDIAISS SjoyMm JejnBal ale aiay] - S9OIAI8S S,uBIP|IyD WOy ASAINS elS || 0} B)es asuodsal %06 - pIay sjuaAe 8oinIas ajoym Apapenp -| Bulob-uQ | G10z/40/10 av yym apew aq o0} sabueyo |y 9'9
5102 100 Jo pud Aq peje|dwod aq 0} smaiAel YAvd Yuow 9 -
9OIAI9S By} Ul sall|iqisuodsas pue s8joJ JIay} Jo sjuswalinbas
ay) Joy ajendoidde (4q) sueid Buiuiel) [enpiAipul 9ABY YE)S [|B 8INSUS 0} Yavd J1ay) paje|dwod aney siaxiom [e100s paliienb Jo %001 -
Aemuspun suoly “ue|d Juswdojaasq pue Buluiel] 891A18g Juswaldw| -
*qol J1ay} jo syuswalinbal
%001 - €O ay} o) ajendoidde s4Q| aAey siaxom [e190s payiienb %001 - uoisinadns god %001 -
%08 - 20 Buipsenbajes sjuawalinbai <
BuiobuQ - %001 - LD siseq Ajyyuow suoisiniadns s,uaipjiyd 90IAI9S YpM Juswubije Jales|o pue <H
pajeidwon :eouewopad uoisinadng - € UO SUOISIAIadNS 9A19081 0} SI3XI0M [e100s payyilenb JO %001 - 10 Aanijep pue aoueldwod %004 -| 9L02/¥0/10 | §1L02/40/1L0 av Juswdojanap [euoissajoid Jjeys urjsenul| g9
Bulobuo yiom - GLOZ 23( Je Jayaq Jo poob pabpnl 9%GG e
BuI0BUO oM - GLOZ 1daS Je Jayaq Jo poob pabpnl %,ct e (@)
panalyoe - G0z YoJep Je Jayaq Jo poob pabpnl %9t e ©
:18)18q 40 poob pabpnl YIopA - Dl
G10z uwnny ui Ayiaoe
JuBW)INIOa) utew ay} Jo Yed se 0) paynioal usaq aaey sisod dy ||y - 9102 YoIe| Jo pus ay} Aq %08 e
G10zZ Jequiaydas jo pus ay} Aq %0G e alen Jo juiod ayy 1e Ayjiqeded aopoeud pjing
wea} }Jom [e190s Jad }s0d gy BUO WINWIUIW € S| 818y} ‘BINJoNLS G102 YoIe|\ Jo pus ay} Aq %GE e [e190g S uaIpIIYD 0} a|diound oIuN|Al 8Y} YIM Sl Ul SB|0I
ay) 0} pappe Usaq Sey 3]0l (dY) JaUoHOBId PEOUBAPY MaU By - 118)}9q 10 poob pabpnl yJom Jo abejusdiad - "gonoeud spom [eioos panosdwi - 91.02/€0/10 | §102/S0/L0 av oeid pasueape padxa uljsaAul| 9
G10Z Jequieides Jo pus 8y} Aq %06 ®
§10z aunr ul pajuswajdwi Alin4 *G1L0Z G102 YoIB|\ JO pud 8y} Aq %GE e
U2Je|\ JO pus JapeaT ay) 0} papiwgns pue paja|dwod ased ssauisng - :18y3q 10 poob pabpnl yiom jo abejusdiad -
alen ainjonys Juawoabeuew wea) Jojej)
paujal usaq mou [IEITENE *SI9YIOM [EID0S JO SWES) (/ WnWIXew) |[ews yum siabeuew ‘siseq A|yjuow IAlJOB JIpne pue uolsiaiadns ybnoayy 100G s,uaJp|! e Bunuawsa|dwi Aq aon0eud jo poddns
sey uonoe siy | [T ITL) wea} Jo Jaquinu ay} Buipuedxa Aq Ajjigejunoooe Jales|d JaAlep o - € UO suoIsIAIadns 9A18081 0} SIaXI0M [e100s payilenb Jo %001 -|  JyBISIan0 Juswebeuew Jo Juswainses| -| GL0z/90/10 | §102/S0/L0 av pue Jybisiano Juswabeuew poob ainsugz| €9
S)99M 9 uey) aiow Joy ueld e Jnoyym uado sased| abuel Jabiey ulyum aonpais 0y ade|d ul suonoe pue jabie) ueyy Jaybiy
pue spom Bopjoeq [[e Jo 2INsojo 0} Pa| dARY SjuaLBACIdW] 801j0BId -| SWES) UONB0Id PIIYD/PESN Ul UBIP|IYD UM Speojese) '1as Jobie)
UlYyIM pue 3|ge)s ale Bulsiso @ uondopy pue ao1AI8S s,8|doad
Buiyeys wusjul paureisns|  BUNOA ‘81eD Ul UaIp|IyD ‘JUSWSSSaSSY B [BLIBJSY Ul Speojase) -
pue sjapow ,891A18s pabeuew, ybnoiyy pappe Ajoeded paseasiou) -
105 196.8) UIYIM S| PUE /|/9] JE S|qElS
pouad swes ay} 10}|  paulewal Sey SAVIAISS S,UaIP|IYD SSOIOE Peojesed abelaAe ay | - 21 = siasjiom [e100s payiienb AimeN -
01 Je paueIwal SeY SIaXIOM [e100S paljijenb Ajmau peojeseo abelane ay | alen
BuiobuQ - "90IMIBS 9y} JO Juswabeuew souewlopad Apiem Jo Jed se pasojuow pJeog aouewopad 8| = SIojIom [e190g S uUaIpIIYD paoueleq pue d|ge)s aie SPeojased
pajajdwo) pue (g1) abuel abesane Jabie) ay} ulyIM AjuaiInd ale Speojase) - 1B Apjeam paiojiuow die SIaxIoMm [e[oos paljlienb Joj speoT ase) - |e1oos payiienb Joj peojased abelany -| Bulob-uQ | 5L02/70/10 av Buunsua Aq aonoeud }saq poddng| z'9
SHwi| peojosed
paaibe uIyIM 90IAIBS BU) SSOIOE Pajedo)|e ale sased AIoJnjess |1y -
sjuswanoidwi a9iAIas Ul Bunsal ale
pue a2e|d ul a1e syjuswabuee Buo)juow juswabeuew Ajoam Jenbay -
SWea) JUSWSSaSSE JO UOISIA0Id B} IO} ,90IAIDS
pabeuew, e Jo uonejuswa|dwi ayy Ag Jow Bureg s puewsap enx3 - sased AIojnjes ||e JO uoieso|je %001 -
|apow ,80IAI8S
Aemyjed s,uaip|Iyd 8y} SSOIOE pUBWSP Pajdadxa ay) Uo Paja|dwod YJOAN - So)el [eUoleu UM Sajes puewap Hg ewyouag - pabeuew, ay) Jo SSBUBAIOYS JOJUON - alep
BuiobuQ - |e190S S UaIPIIYD puewap pajoadxa yym [apow Buers
pajajdwon G10Z aunr Ul kemyjed a1e9 [B100S S,usIpliyd dY) pajuswiaiduw - HE1 ulyim as1019xa puewap e aje|dwio) - [opow Aemured s,usIpiiy0 Juawajdwi -| §102/60/L0 | §102/70/L0 av ay) Buiubije Aq sewooino Jepaq poddng| L9
«mwkomuoa%%%: o snjejg suonoy - ssaiboid sjobie] Aoy S3UO)SII\l PUB SAINSEIJ douUBWIOLIdd | 3jeq pul | ajeq Hels pea uonoy 3y

Z Xipuaddy

sjyuawabue.ie Juswabeuew aspoesd parosdwi pue Bupjiom jo skem mau Buippaquig :9 weas}s YIoM



G102 4890100
ul 98Iwwo) 8y} 0} Juam podai sjepdn uonejuswaldwi Absyens 389 -

soe|d U sue|d pue SJUSWISSSSSE S PUE POX3OBL} SSSED %00] -

$9SEO S0 Hokl) 0} pasn ale sBunessw dy N pue ISYIA AJUIUON -

*SUIBOU0D JSD

'GL0Z dog Aq papiooal sueld pue Juswssasse
YSU 9A1}08)J0 SARY || pue payoel) s8sed 380 JO %001 -

Buipsenbajes

~

3sod sabueyn

paunas usaq mou IS 610z Judy| o} Buipuodsal pue BuiAjyuspl usym 2o0eld pUE SOUBPYUOD|  SPUBI) [EDO] PUE [BUOHEU UJIM BUI| Ul SUISOUOD JO [9A3] s,uaIpjiyd |000j01d Aemeuny pue uosiod
sey uonoe siy| [SEIEITIY  ul payoune| [000j01d ABMEUNY puE UOSIad Buissi)y pue ABajens 359 -| dojansp o) sjeuoissajoud |je ajqeus [jim Jey) ABajess 350 v By} aInseaw 0} Japio ul ejep 35D Jo Juswdojeaaq -| §102/60/10 | $1.02/L0/L0 av Buissiyy pue ABajens 380 youneq| g/
Sey snjejs ‘¢
JoBeuepy
901M9S Buimainey
pue Buipsenfajes 'GL0oZ dog Aq mainal syuawanoldwi ainbai
0} Buipienbajes pa3o|dwod %00 | sem ssao0id Siy} G1L.0Z 990 IV ‘SMaIAaI julod-piw B 8ABY [|IM UBIPIIYD JOYY Pax00T %001 - ey} seale aonoeld Buibus|ieyo
s,ualp|iyd juiod-piw Bupiojuow 1o} ssao01d sy} Buimairal a1om am GOz 1daS Iy - Jabeuepy pue aopoeid poob Bunowoid
av, wouy pabueys EITENES sbunesw aoueinsse 901MI9S Buimainey! Ajuajsisuod sainsse Ajjenb jey)
sey pea '| 2 EI [T sBunesw wea) Ajyyuow Buunp s,04| Aq pamainay - "ualp|IyD JaYy paxoo Joy sawooino paroidul| Ajjenb Ajyjuow ye smainal Jexoel| uonnjosay andsid -|51.02/60/10 | §L02/70/10 |pue Buipienbajes | ao1aiag Buimalney jsnqol e ainsug| 47/
ue|d uonoe ay) eIA suonoe Juswaldwi pue aaibe s,NINS
pue siebeueyy aonoeld "sesodind Aunnios pue Buliojuow Joj SpuoWWIS
1D pue 8ANN9SXT JOIYD dY) O} PaINGUISIP si odal puas Jipny -
100} ypne 93je Buisn paja|dwiod sypne a|i ased %001} ‘SL0Z Ae woud -
s)pne a|lj 8sed Jo uoNa|dwod Joj soueldwod %001 ‘GLOZ |Udy wold -
sBunesw soueInssy Ajend Ajyjuouw Je paiojuoi -
sBunssw uoisialadns Jo uonejusws|dw
308D puE Jo}juoW O} |00} JIpNe Ue Se pasn Jayoel) uoisiaiadns AJYjuop - pawuwelboid se
paje|dwod a1e sppne paway} Jo %001 9102 dy Ag -
|00} Jipne 2luol}o8|e pue ABojopoyiaw
ypne axodsaq Buisn pajajdwiod sypne onewsay) Ajyuow-ig pliyo |00} JIpNE 21UOI}OBID
3y} Jo 9210 By} pue uoisiAtadns ‘Bunjew uoisioap/ybisiano Juswabeuew Buisn paje|dwoo sypne aji 8sed %001} §1.0Z Ae|y woi4 -

‘salbojouolyo ‘syuswssasse Buipnjoul @ouewiopad 3oel} 0} siseq Ajyjuow ‘ARem snoioBu e ul Juswabeuew pue uoisiniadns L0
s,uaipiyd Ay, wol ML EN e uo seale oyoads Uo EJep sapiacid |00} Jipne 01U0J}OS[] |00} HPNE B]Y Ajiep ojur ypne woly Buiules| sonoeid pue Aunnios S)Ipne ajl 8sed 1abeuepy <H
pabueys sey pea LI EILNELYoseo oluoljos|e ay; Buisn sypne Aouabe ajbuls aja|dwod o} siebeuew ||y -| paqws o} siebeuew aonoeld poddns |im yeyy yoeoidde uy|  jo uonajdwod Joy soueldwod %001) §10Z |Udy woid -| 91.02/0/L€ | SL0Z/¥0/1L0 BOINBS YO awwelboid ¥pny mau youne] €L,

§10¢ Uer 8ouis sjipne
Alyyuow yym aoueldwod %001 ‘Aemiapun swwelboud ypne Ajyuop - m
Buiobuo yiom - L0z 297 }e Japaq Jo poob pabpnl 9%,GG e DI
Bulobuo spiom - G0z 1deS e uepaq 1o poob pabpnl o,8y
paAaIy2e - G1,0Z Y2.e\ I Ja)aq Jo poob pabpnl 9,9t e
:18)38q 10 poob pabpn( yiom Jo abejusdied -
SIBUE)S MaU J0} ssa00.d uonoNpUl
sy} Jo Wed si sIy) ‘Jayund “Jauonioeld juswaroidw| o1joeId By}
Aq paianijep Buiaq pue |0z |Udy Pl Ul PEOUSWWOD SPIepue)S aooeld
mau uo sdoyssiom pue Buiurel 8zis ayg jo awweiboid BuiobuQ -
X-l] EIA SI9YIOM [EI00S
|le 0} 3|ge|ieA. Mou ale pue G10g |Udy G Uo payoune| pue jo paubis
Jobeuepy Buluueld aie) e
S0IMIBS VO, uaip|iy o3 SYSIA o 910 UdIBN %08 @
0} Buip.ienbajes sue|d uoa8joId PlIYD @ G10Z Joquia)das Jo pua ay) Aq %0G
SIVEN Ve Xa VAN BuiobuQ - JUBWISSOSSY PUE [BLIDJOY © *90IAI9S By} S10Z Yol Jo pus ay) Aq %S¢ e iabeuepy
pabueyd sey pea [LIEI[ITEL) 110} SpJEpUB)S 90101 MAN -[SSOIOE PAUIBISNS puBe PadouapIAS 9o1jo.Id JO pIepue)s ,pooD), Ja)1eq Jo poob pabpnl suom Jo abejusdiad | 910z/€0/LE | GLOZ/P0/LO ERIIVEISAY o) SpJepuUB)S 8o1j0BId Mau youne| gz
OV PuE 49 0} 103[qns uaipjiyg e
SUUOW 8| JOAO Joj sueld Uo uaaq SABY OUYM UBIP|IYD
sue|d yo uae} uaipjiy) e
1§10z 98 ul paje|dwod sypne 4o -
Bunjew-uoisioap ay) Jo ssausjendoidde
Jo Jipne yBnouy) paunyuod sem siy] ‘sinoqyubiau [onSHElS
INo yym aul| ul a1e premsoy Buiob Ayoedeo pue puewsap pajoipaid ayy
ssaiboid SMOYS MOU Jey} sainbly 4O ui uononpal ajeudoidde ue usaqg sey aiay] -
uj,
BuloBuo siom - G0z 099 Je Jayaq Jo poob pabpnl %,GG e
sey snjejs 'z Bulobuo spiom - G0z 1das je Japaq Jo poob pabpnl %8y e ‘sue|d
paAaIyoe - G1.0Z Yo.el 1. Janeq Jo poob pabpnl o9y e uonoe Jesjo Buidojonsp ao1AI9S BY) SSOIOE Juswaoldwl
Jobeuep :18)39q 10 poob pabpn( yiom jo abejusdiad - aAUP |Im sBuipuly @oueInssy Ajend AJUuop -
S0INIBS VO,
0} Buipienbajes G10Z uer aouls aouel|dwod Jipne %00} - 910Z YoIe|N %08 @ 90noe.d Jo spiepuels:
s,ualp|iyd G10z Jaquaydag jo pus ay} Aq %05 e poob, paquia o} swwelboid
Qv, woJy pabueyo [EITIE e G10z Iudy | uo paydsune| 91.0z/S L0z o} swweibold ypny *90IAISS By} G10g YoIBIN Jo pus ay) Aq %GE e iabeuey JIPNY PUB }IOMBWEI4 S0UBINSSY
sey pea ‘| [LEIEIENITELY pue G0z |udy | payoune| pue jjo paubis yiomawel4 aoueInssy Ajjenp) -|SS0JOe paule)sns pue pasuspiAe ad1joeld Jo pJepue)s ,pooo), 1191389 10 poob pabpn( yiom jo abejusdiad - 91.02/€0/L€ | S10Z/¥0/L0 30INIBS YO Ajjend mau jo uoneyuswaidwy| |2
s10z ydos snjejs suopay - ssaiboid sjabie) Aoy S9UOJS3|IN PUB SAINSEaJ\ 9UBWIONId ojeq pu3 | sjeq Hels pea uopoy 4

Z Xipuaddy

aoueinssy A)ijenp aAoayT 1L Weal)s YIoM



lejol

%0

%62

%L

ones

ssaiboud u|

pajojdwon

abejusoiad
JlaquinN

91/S102 10} SNOILOV 40 SNLVLS

Page 46

JaBeuepy
90IM18G Buimainay
pue BuipienBajes,

0} Buipienbajes
s,ua1p|IyD AV, Woly

9102
go4 ul 9oe|d 8Xe) 0} NP SI P|IYO U} JO SIJOA B} UO JIPNE ONRLBY} VY -

9102 YoIB| JO pus AQ S80UBIBJUOD UONDSJ0Id PIIYD
pue smainay DV ul uoliedioned s,aidoad BunoA pue ualp|iyo yoel] -

9102 Yote ul 49 Joj pue
G10z Bny ul Oy Joy paonpoujul sem yoiym (Juiodmalp Buioeidal) jspow

“BuIyew UoISIoap Ul SMAIA JIay) 9pN[oUl PUE 8D10A S,PlIUD Sy}

9102 Yyoien Aq %001 :sauoisaliy

(5102

dag) Buiyew uoisioap Ul 8910A S,p|IYD U} 82USPIAS
sue|d uoloajold Py pue sueld a1ed Jo ypny -

SMaIA S,plIyo Buiouapine pue

Jabeuepy

Bujew uoisioap Jo syoadse

901A19S Buimainey| ||e ul paIapISU0D 818 SMAIA J1ay) Jeu)
Umm:mr_o sey pea’ ssaiboud uj Mau ayj si >>®_>mm>_2 .wom_u mr__v_N« ale QY] pue 49 Joj uoneynsuo) - J9pISUOD SUOIjUBAIBIUI JOM |BIOOS pue w:m_a |le ainsus 0| mc_uw_QEOu 0} asuodsal pasealoul 88s ||Im >>®_>®W_>_2 -19102/€0/L0| GL0Z/LO/LO |pue mC_U‘_m:mmwmw JUBpIAS SI ) >®C‘_:O.— S,PIYo r_m:n:r_._. Ll
910z |1y Jo
pue 0} GL0Z/01/L0
wouly pabueyo
sey ajep pu3 'z
Jobeuep juswanoidwi syowoud pue
90INIBS YO, Buuueld ainny wuojul 0y Bulules)
0} ,buipienbajes 9102 pue a9n0e.d poob ybnouyy paraiyoe
s,ualpliyd Judy Aq paje|dwoo aq @1 YO [N}V "sisuoijioeld juswanoidw *uaJpIyo Jo} SaWoaINo paroJdwi pue sonoeld ‘syjuow Xis A1oAs BlEP pUE ¥OBqPIS) sjuawanoidwi Bunelodiodu ‘soines
ay. wouy pabueyd 3o1joeld 3y} ybnouyy siseq Ajyjuow e uo sisuonioeld Yo wouy indul Jayaq ‘uonoe pauueld ‘uopoaljal ojul AJAlOR SoUBINSSE|  @oUBINSSE AJI|END JO MBIABI PaINJONI)S B UNJ ||IM Wes | Jabeuepy Y} SS0JOB SWa)SAS aoueInssy
sey peaT ‘L |ssaiboid uj|  Bulobuo pue juanbaly palinbai sABY s8INJONI)S WES) PUB PBBU SDIAISS Ayjenb o16ajens Buiuiny Joy aoe|d ul ssaooud ysngos aouelInssy Ajlenp ayj jo poddns sy} ypm swes} || 91.02/70/0€ | S102/60/L0 30INIBS YO Ajlenp jo sisAjeue pue uopejod| 9/
«wwwamWQ%Mo snjejs suonoy - ssaiboid sjabue) Aoy S9U0}SI|I|\ PuUB SaINSEI|\ 2oUBWIOMdd ajeq pu3 | ajeq Heis pea’ uonay 9y

Z Xipuaddy

aoueinssy A)ijenpd aAodyT 1/ Weal)s YIoM



Appendix 3

Children and Young Person Service - Dashboard - 1st February 2016

Author: LBH P&I Team: ext. 6906

Contacts up but within normal range Number of Contacts in 1784

Cec (2015/16 avg. 1748 )

Rererrals at lower end of normal range 273

Number of referrals in

Dec

(2015/16 avg. 299)

Key Worker Service - New Cases steadily
increasing since July 15 - Note: data only for KWS,

286

ot yet collecting whole service metrics - ewElicasesEane

service reporting expected Q1 16/17 (2015/16 avg. 54)

Re-referral sharp rise from Oct & Nov lows

Demand

1200

20% Aug-14 Dec-14 Apr-15 May-15 Jun-15 15 Aug-15 Sep-15 Oct-15 Nov-15 Dec-15. Jan-16
Re-referral Rate .
(2015116 YTD 20%) = Contacts v ~New Cases
# Children in service rem: stable throughout #Of Children Looked After Children
2015/16 2600 450
#LAC stable in a stable range since Aug 15 # Of which LAC 2400
# CP, after peaking in Aug 15 CP numbers have # Of which CP 2200
been withing expected range since Nov 15 =
(2015/16 avg. 359) 2000
@ 1315 1800
# Of which CIN Plan 645
# CIN remaining stable through 2015/16 1600
# Of which Pathway 352 1400
# Of which Open 318
. Aug-14 Dec-14 Apr-15 May-15 Jun-15 Jul-15 Aug-15 Sep-15 Oct-15 Nov-15 Dec-15 Jan-16
# No Plan 6 weeks + lowest yet recorded Fohichorent 169
weeks+ = Children  ——Service Projection E=Total LAC  ——Service Projection
Open Referral - Not on a Plan Children on a CP Plan

CIN Total (excluding CP & LAC)

at 90%+ within timescales

500
1000 2500
800 2000 21 e
600 1345 1300 1287 1343 1377 1393 1361
400
200
O o o e o o
o FEEI L LSS
Aug-14 Dec1d Apr-15 May-15 Jun-1S Jull5 AuglS Sep-15 Oct-15 Nov-15 Dec1s Jan-16 « ¥ Aug14  Dec1d Apr15 May-1S Jun-15  JuklS  Augl5  Sepd5 Oct-15  Nov-15 DecdS Jan-l6
@ Age under 18and noplan  m# No Plan 6 weeks+ m==#onaCPPlan  ——Sevice Projection =N (Total P& LAC)
35 .
Weload - Newly Qualified, 33 Social Worker Caseloads
30
Average Caseload - Qualified, 23
» M lified, 18 A Caseload - Qualified, 18
15
- Aver Caseload - Student, 13 Average Caseload - Newly Qualified, 15
10
rage Caseload - Student, 7
° \/
0 Caseload - Student, 1
Aug-14 Sep-14 Oct-14 Nov-14 Dec-14 Jan-15. Feb-15 Mar-15 Apr-15 May-15 Jun-15 Jul-15 Aug-15 Sep-15. Oct-15 Nov-15 Dec-15 Jan-16
'CP Stat Visits 3 months steady at 74%within| T 74% 08 % CP Statutory visits within 2 week timescale LAC Statutory Visits on Time
2 week timescale % Completed within Time ad .
el (2015/16 avg. 70% )
LAC Stat Visits - Nov and Dec remaining high 90%

% Completed within Time
Dec 2015

(2015/16 avg. 84%)

CP Visits - All children due a visit have received a

Vst # Children due a visit but °
not visited Dec 2015
LAC Visits - ATl chidren due a visi have received @[50 58 SEEEEREE
ildren due a visit bu 9 ] g 2 2 9 g ]
oty aifod Daci2is 0 3 £ p z : 3 i i s | meyss | meds | wias | mgls | Sels | owis | Nevis | oeeis
= Hilingdon Trendiine s Number of LAC stat visits i Number of LAC sat visits on time k=5 of LAC sat visis on time
CP Reviews - Reviews completed in Dec at 40 ﬁases reviewed within ti Section 47 Enquires and ICPC
lower end of 2015/16 range # Completed Dec 2015 160 1 160 2
(2015/16 avg. 57 )
'CP Reviews - 98% of those completed have S 98%
beon completed in time % Completed within Time o
(2015/16 avg. 96%)
547 enquiries for Dec at lower end of 15/16 range 920
# Enquiries Dec 2015
(2015/16 avg. 102)
ICPC - maintaining hig erformance throughout
e Sl % Compicted within Time 96%

Dec 2015

(2015/16 avg. 83%)

Apr-15 May-15 Jun-d5  Jul15  AugdS  Sep-l5  Oct15  Now-ls

E==aTotal cases &= Total reviewed in timescale

Dec1s Apr-15
s CP cases reviewed within timescale

May-15  Jund5  JuklS  Augls  Sep-ds  Octds  Nov-dS  Decls
=547 enqiries = e

% of children on CP Plan for second or subsequent time

PLO Timeliness - Families - Weeks (Note, historic records are per

child)

CP Plans - % of children on a plan for the

y Y
2ndtime s at lower end of 2015116 range |\ SIS 10%
ndlsubsequent time  [RRSPPPEY
PLO timescales increased in Q3 however 9% Completed within Time 90%

projections for live cases are below 26 week

Dec 2015

target. (2015/16 avg. 84%)

May-15  Jund5  Julk1s  Augls  Sep1s

~——Hilingdon Trendine

Oct15  Nov-1s

2013/14-
Historic

2014/15 (Q1 & 2014/15 (Aug -
Q2)-Historic  March)

2015/16(Q1)  2015/16(Q2)  2015/16(Q3)  2015/16 (Live

Dec-15 Cases projection)

Quarterly Casefile Audit Outcomes

CaseFile Audits - Ratio of casefiles rated
good or outstanding has increased from 9%
in Q1 to 39% in Quarters 2 & 3.

Q3 15-16 39% Good or
Outstanding

% Rated as inadaquate
falling from 39% in Q1 to
19% Q3

Case File Audit

Outcomes

Q3 84 Cases rated Good
or outstanding up from
31 cases in Q1

42 cases rates as
inadaguate down from
138in Q1

2%

39% | 40% 39%

2015-16-Q1 2015-16- Q2 2015-16-Q3

=% Rated Good or Outstanding % Requiring Improvement

=% Rated Inadaquate

Quarterly Case File Audit Outcomes #

201516 -

2015-16-Q2 2015-16-Q3

or Outstanding MR

Page 47




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 48



Appendix 4
Glossary of terms used

AD Assistant Director

ADCS The Association of Directors of Children's Services Ltd
AYSE Assessed and Supported Year in Employment
CADA Police description for the purpose of crime logging
CIC Children In Care

CIN Children In Need

CP Child Protection

CSE Child Sexual Exploitation

CSWT Children’s Social Work Team

CYPS Children and Young People’s Services

DV Domestic Violence

EET Education, Employment, or Training

FGC Family Group Conference

HCL HCL Workforce Solutions

HR Human Resources

ICPC International Child Protection Certificate

IDVA Independent Domestic Violence Advocacy service
IFA Independent Foster Agency

LAC Looked After Children

LSCB Local Safeguarding Children’s Board

MASH Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub

MOPAC Mayor's Office for Policing And Crime

NEET Not in Education, Employment, or Training
NRPF No Recourse to Public Funds

PADA Performance & Development Appraisal
PEP Personal Education Plan

Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee — 17 February 2016

PART 1 — MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Page 49



PIP
PLO
QA
SDQ
SGO
SMART
YP

YPIDVA

Practice Improvement Practitioner

Public Law Outline

Quality Assurance

Strengths and Difficulties Questionnaire

Special Guardianship Orders

Specific, Measurable, Achievable, Realistic and Time-limited
Young People

Young People’s Independent Domestic Violence Advocacy service

Appendix 4

Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee — 17 February 2016

PART 1 — MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS

Page 50



Agenda ltem 6
WORK PROGRAMME 2015/2016

Contact Officer: Jon Pitt
Telephone: 01895 277655
REASON FOR REPORT
This report is to enable the Committee to review meeting dates and forward plans. This is
a standard item at the end of each agenda.
OPTIONS OPEN TO THE COMMITTEE

1. To confirm dates for meetings; and
2. To make suggestions for future working practices and reviews.

WORK PROGRAMME 2015/16

24 Jun 2015 | Major Review - Consideration of Scoping Report

CR5 School Admissions Update

Update on previous Major Review of the Committee - Strengthening
the Council's Role as a Corporate Parent

Cabinet Forward Plan - Review forthcoming decisions

Work Programme — Review the work programme for the coming year

15 July 2015 | Children and Young People's Service Improvement Plan - progress
report
CR5

Budget Planning Report for Education & Children's Services 2016/17

Cabinet Forward Plan - Review forthcoming decisions

Work Programme — Review the work programme for the coming year

9 Sep 2015 Major Review — Witness Session 1

CR5 Quarterly School Place Planning Report

Annual Complaints Report 2014/15 for Children and Young People's
Services

Local Safeguarding Children’s Board Annual Report

Cabinet Forward Plan - Review forthcoming decisions

Work Programme — Review the work programme for the coming year

Children, Young People & Learning Policy Overview Committee — 17 February 2016

PART 1 — MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS
Page 51



7 Oct 2015

CR5

Major Review — Witness Session 2

Consideration of topics for minor review

Children and Young People's Service Improvement Plan - Quarterly
Update

Child Sexual Exploitation Strategy - Implementation Update

Cabinet Forward Plan - Review forthcoming decisions

Work Programme — Review the work programme for the coming year

25 Nov 2015

CR5

Major Review — Witness Session 3

Consideration of topics for minor review

Update Report - Progress on Implementation of previous review
'Hillingdon's Implementation of the Special Educational Needs and
Disability (SEND) Reforms

Cabinet Forward Plan - Review forthcoming decisions

Work Programme — Review the work programme for the coming year

13 Jan 2016

CR5

Major Review - presentation of draft final report

Minor Review - Consideration of Scoping Report

Standards and Quality in Education in Hillingdon 2014/2015

Budget Proposals Report

Cabinet Forward Plan - Review forthcoming decisions

Work Programme — Review the work programme for the coming year

17 Feb 2016

CR4 and
CR4A

Children and Young People's Service Improvement Plan - Quarterly
Update

Cabinet Forward Plan - Review forthcoming decisions

Work Programme — Review the work programme for the coming year

Children, Young People & Learning Policy Overview Committee — 17 February 2016

PART 1 — MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS
Page 52




16 Mar 2016

CR5

Minor Review - Witness Session

Update on previous Major Review of the Committee - Reducing the
Risk of Young People Engaging in Criminal Activity and Anti-Social
Behaviour

Update on previous review - Elective Home Education

Cabinet Forward Plan - Review forthcoming decisions

Work Programme — Review the work programme for the coming year

13 Apr 2016

CR5

Minor Review - Presentation of Draft Report

Children and Young People's Service Improvement Plan - 2015/16
Overview

Quarterly school place planning

Child Sexual Exploitation Strategy - update on issue of Female
Genital Mutilation (FGM)

Cabinet Forward Plan - Review forthcoming decisions

Work Programme — Review the work programme for the coming year

*all meetings begin at 7pm.

Children, Young People & Learning Policy Overview Committee — 17 February 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS
Page 53




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 54



Agenda ltem 7

FORWARD PLAN 2015/2016

Contact officer: Jon Pitt
Telephone: 01895 277655

REASON FOR ITEM

The Committee is required by its Terms of Reference to consider the Forward Plan and
comment as appropriate to the decision-maker on key decisions which relate to services
within its remit (before they are taken by the Cabinet or by the Cabinet Member).
OPTIONS OPEN TO THE COMMITTEE

e To comment on items going to the Cabinet or to the Cabinet Member for decision.
e Or to note the items and decide not to comment.

INFORMATION

The latest published Forward Plan is attached. The Committee may wish to consider the
non standard items that fall within its remit.

SUGGESTED COMMITTEE ACTIVITY

To consider whether there are comments or suggestions that the Committee wishes to
make.

Children, Young People & Learning Policy Overview Committee — 17 February 2016

PART 1 — MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS
Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 56



uoieonp3
J0} JuswedaQq
/ ®8RIWW0D
MBINIBAQ weybunong
21104 Buiuiea 9A9)S Sliv10c uoljeanp3
%9 9|doad BunoA | Apauuayj 3g9 spuowwis ‘ybnoiog ay} ssosoe souewlouad [euonesnps uo ul Ajjend
allgnd ‘s,uaJpiiyo [slueq - sy piae@JilD ly| uopewJojul Bululejuod jauiged o} Joday [enuuy ay | pue spiepuels| g9
sjooyss
siswieyn '/ 10z Joquiaydag | woly joays aye) 0} uopbuljiH ul Auunwwo)
uole}NSuU0d Auuap S|00Y9S AJUNWWOD IO} BLIB)IO SUOISSIWPE MBU JO 1S 1o} elId)lo
ol|gnd Japm pue / Apauuay 39D spuowwis B 9UIWIS}ap 0} JOU IO JBYIdym JapIsuod pue sasuodsal| suolssiwpy ayj o}
a1and S|00Yos |e007 ueq - Sy piaeq 4110 V| @yl Japisuod m 1uiqe) ‘uoieynsuod ||} Buimojjo4| sabueys pasodoad| qgg
‘ybnoliog ayj ui pajeonpa
uaJp|iyo Jo} saoe|d JusIolNS JoAIISP 0} Yoel} uo doay
youi4 Agqog|ooueig ueyieuor JjjD pue sanjioe} apelbdn 0} Japio ul swwelbold [eude) ajepdn
() @renud s99)Nsuod| /39O Jewled| ¥ 39D spuowwis jooyos 8y} ssaiboud 0} Japuo ul suoisioap Alessadsu awuwelibouid
/21and ajesodio) uesr - Sy piaeq 411D snoueA Aue 1sanbal pue j1auige) ayepdn |im podal siy g jended jooyss| |
3dIN
j0041ppnd Aey 411D
9 oduelg ueyjeuor "196pnqg a8y} Uo uolEPUBWIWIOIAI JIBY}
ZoIMSBN (411D ‘3FD Spuowwis PUE WNJO4 S|00YIS U} YIM UOKEHNSUOD Buimoy|oy L1/9102
ollgnd uwnlo4 sjooyaos J8led - SY piAe@ o I\ 19Bpng sjooyog sy} aa.1be 0} payse aq ||Im Jaulqed Jebpng sjooyds| G/
siohedoiel
¥ s9ssauIsN( ‘leaocidde 1oy [1ouno? [N}
UlIM UoIB}NSu0d 0} paJlajal aq uay} |Im 3@6png 8y} ‘uoIsIoap S,1auige) MHOMINVHS
Aiojnieys 0} 109[qng "uoBIBPISUOD 10} SJUBI \YYH By} apn|oul AJIT0d
pue ssaooud os|e [|Im sIy| “sJeak unoj Buimojjoy ayy Joy suonosfoud ®? 1394dng
29)Iwwo) aAIeoIpuUl yum Buoje ‘uonjeynsuod 1oy /1/9102 Lz/0eoe
M3IAIBAQ Ad1j0d 10} swuwelsboud |eyided pue 1o6pnq aAsasal pund| - LL/910¢ }sedd.lo4
ay} ybnouyy oouelg ueyjeuor [BJ8USS) JeIp Y} S8pNjoul yoiym ‘(441 N) 1seos104 |eloueulq waa |
uone}NSu0d puewAeypn 10 % 39N [eloueUlq W] wnipsl ay) Joy sjesodoud sjauiqe)| wnipaly - 396png
allgnd olland Ined - 4| 3oojippnd Aey 4[1D[91-994-G2 v 8} Jn0 }8S ||Im Jodal siy) ‘uoie}nsuod Buimojjo S,J1dunoj ayl| qi9
910z Areniga g| - Joulqed
ajueuld =04 uolesSIUIWPY = QY oJe) [BID0S = DS  S3DIAISG SJuUspIsay = Sy :sjpuswiiedaq |1ouno) yjuow yoea wa}| piepuels = |S
suoseal uoISsIo3p 3y} uoljewLiojul a|qisuodsay [1Iouno)|( (s)piem s|iejap Jaylng suoisioaq s
Q uoIsioa( uo uoije}nsuo) Jayyny Joy| (s)iaquiapy Jouiqen In4 Aq m:_EOOQD
ajeAlld JoBJU0D J9210 uoisioap -
/o1and [eutd

Page 57



‘snjels AWspeoy 0} U8AUOD

uosiajed 0} YSIM oym S|ooyds 0} sases| Buoj jo Buijuesb j1ounon SUOISI9AU0D)
2119nd [9BYDIN - S¥H|oouelg ueyieuor 41D snouep| 8y} Joj |eaocidde yaas 0} JouIqe) o} Jodal piepues Awopeoy| |s
yodaua Buliojiuow
puewAeypn ‘uonisod |ejided pue anusaAal s [I2uUno) 8y} [Ielep - Jobpng
a1gnd [ned - g4|ooueig ueyieuor J)1D V| ur3ino Bumes podas Alyuow e saal@oal Jouige) 8yl |  [1ouno) Alyjuo| IS
‘ybnoiog auyj ui pajeonpa
uaJp|iyo Jo} saode|d JusIoINS JOAIISP 0} Xoel} uo deay
youi4 Agqog|ooueig ueyyeuor 4|10 pue sanjioe} apeibdn 0y Jopio ul swwelboud |eyden ajepdn
(g) @eaud so99)nsuod| /390 Jewled| ¥ 39D spuowwis |ooyos oy} ssaiboud 0} Joplo ul suoisioap Alessaosu awweibouid
/oland ajelodion uear - Sy piAeq 411D snouep Aue 1sanbai pue jJauiqe) ayepdn [jim podal siy ] jended jooyssg| |S

‘snjels Awapeoy 0] U8AUOD

uoslajed 0] Ysim oym sjooyds o} seses| Buo jo Bunuelb j1ounon SUOISI9AUO0)
2l|gnd [9BYDIN - S¥H|oouelg ueyieuor 41D snouep| ayj Joj |eaocidde yass 0} jJouiqe) o} Jodal piepuess Awopeay| |g
jlodau Bupojiuow
puewAeypn ‘uonisod |ejided pue anuaAal s,[I2uUNo) 8y} [1elep - Jobpng
a1gnd [ned - g4|ooueig ueyieuor J10 IIv| ur3ino Bumes podas Ajlyjuow e saai@oal JouIge) 8yl |  [1ouno) Alyuo| IS
‘ybnoliog ayj ul pajeonps
uaJp|iyo Jo} saoe|d JusIolNS JaAISP 0} Yoel) uo doay
youl4 Agqog|oouelg ueyieuor 4|10 pue sainjioe} epelbdn 0y Jepio ul swwelbold [ended ajepdn
(g) |1eALd so9)nsuod| /390 Jewled| % 39D Spuowwis Jooyog ay} ssaiboud 0} Japlo ul suoisioap Alessaosu awuwelibouid
/o1and ajesodio) uear - Sy piAeq J11D snolep Aue 1senbai pue jauiqe) ayepdn [jm Jodal siy ] jeydeg jooyass| |S

‘snje)s Awspeoy 0} U8AUOD

uoslaped 0] Ysim oym sjooyas o} seses| Buo| jo Buiuelb j1ounon SUOISI9AUO0Y)

a1gnd [9BYDIN - S¥H |0oouelg ueyieuor JjjD snolep| 8y} Joy |eaocidde yass 0} Jouiqe) 0} Jodal plepuess Awoepeay| |
S90INISS Aupniog
onjeloowsa ‘pale|dwoo usym pue se Jauige) 8y} Ag Uonelspisuod| @ MalAIaAQ Aoljod

ol|9nd -av og1 ogl J0} SUOljepUSLIWODa] MBIASY ADlj0d Jole wouy spoday| IS
yodaua Buliojiuow
puewAeypn ‘uonisod |ejided pue anuaAal s [I2uUnoY) 8y} [Ielep - Jobpng

a1gnd [ned - g4|ooueig ueyieuor J)1D V| urino Bumes podas Alyuow e saal@oal Jouige) 8yl |  [1ouno) Alyuoi| IS

Page 58



‘snjels AWwspeody 0} UAUOD

uosiajed 0} YSIM oym S|jooyds 0} sases| Buoj jo Buijuesb j1ounon SUOISI9AUO0D)
2ll9nd [9BYDIN - SH|0ouelg ueyieuor 41D snouep| 8y Joj |eacidde yaas 0} Jouiqe) o} Jodal piepuels Awopeoy| |s
yodaua Buliojiuow
puewAeypn ‘uonisod |ejided pue anuaAal s [I2uUno) ay} [Ielep - Jobpng
a1gnd [ned - g4|ooueig ueyieuor J)1D V| ur3ino Bumes podas Ajyuow e saal@0al Jouige) 8yl |  [1ouno) Alyuoi| IS
‘ybnoliog ayj ul pajeonpa
uaJp|iyo 4o} saoe|d JusIolNS JOAISP 0} oel) uo doay
youi4 Agqog|oouelg ueyieuor 4|10 pue sanijioe} apelbdn 0y Japio ul swwelbolid [eyded ajepdn
(g) @1eALd so9)nNsuod| /390 Jewled| % 39D Spuowwis Jooyos 8y} ssaiboud 0} Japlo ul suoisioap Alessadsu awuweliboud
/2lgnd ajesodio) uesr - Sy piaeq Ji1D snoueA Aue 1sanba. pue jauige) ayepdn |im Jodal siy ] |ende) jooyssg| |S

9102 Aely 61 - 18uIqe)

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 60



	Agenda
	4 To agree the minutes of the meeting held on 13 January 2016
	5 Children and Young People's Social Care Service Improvement Plan - Progress Report
	Appendix 1 - Childrens Social Care Services Improvement Plan 2015 - 16
	Appendix 2 - CSC Improvement Action Plan
	Appendix 3 - CYPS Dashboard
	Appendix 4 - Glossary of Terms Used

	6 Work Programme 2015/16
	7 Forward Plan
	Forward Plan - Public Version


